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Notice is hereby given that the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Members of ZODIAC VENTURES LIMITED will be held
on Friday, 30th September 2022 at 3:00 P.M. 

at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 404 Dev Plaza, S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400058
to transact the following business:

To receive, consider and adopt:
     The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 and the Reports of  
      the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and
     The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 and
      the report of the Auditors thereon.

To appoint Mr. Jimit Shah (DIN: 01580796), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment
     as Director.

To pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the said Act and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made thereunder and other applicable 
rules, if any, under the said Rules (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), M/s Navin Nishar & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, having Firm Registration No. 116503W, be and are 
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of the Forty-Sixth (46th) Annual General Meeting of the Company at a remuneration to be fixed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company, in addition to the re-imbursement of applicable taxes and actual out of pocket and 
travelling expenses incurred in connection with the audit and billed progressively.”

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

‘‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘‘Act’’) and any other applicable 
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification thereof for the time being in force 
and as may be enacted from time to time), subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions, as may be 
necessary, and the Articles of Association of the Company and all other provisions of applicable laws, consent of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, to give loans to any other 
bodies corporate (including overseas bodies corporate) and/or give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a 
loan to any other bodies corporate (including overseas bodies corporate) and/or acquire by way of subscription, purchase 
or otherwise,  the securities of any other bodies corporate (including overseas bodies corporate) upto an aggregate amount 
not exceeding Rs. 100 Crores notwithstanding that the aggregate of the loans or guarantees or securities so far given or to 
be given and/or securities so far acquired or to be acquired by the Company may in aggregate collectively exceed the limits 
prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.’

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company be and 
are hereby authorized to take from time to time all decisions and such steps as may be necessary for intimating the
Registrar of Companies, giving loans, guarantees or providing securities or for making such investments and to execute 
such documents, deeds, writings, papers and/or agreements as may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things, as it may in its absolute discretion, deem fit, necessary or appropriate.’’

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Notice
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To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

‘‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment thereof for the time being in force) and Articles of Association of the Company and in supersession of all the 
earlier Resolution(s) passed in this regard, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
of Directors of the Company to borrow in any manner from time to time any sum or sums of money at its discretion on such 
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem fit, notwithstanding that the moneys to be borrowed by the 
Company together with the moneys already borrowed (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers 
in the ordinary course of business) from the financial institutions, Company’s Bankers and/or from any person or persons, 
firms, bodies corporate whether by way of loans, advances, deposits, bills discounting, issue of debentures, bonds or any 
financial instruments or otherwise and whether secured or unsecured which may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up 
capital and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose (apart from temporary loans 
obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business), provided that the maximum amount of money 
so borrowed by the Board and outstanding at any one time shall not exceed the sum of Rs. 200 Crores (Rupees Two 
Hundred Crores only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board of Directors be and are hereby 
authorized to intimate the Registrar of Companies and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its 
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in 
respect of the borrowing(s) aforesaid and also to delegate all or any of the above powers to such Committee of Directors 
or the Managing Director or the Director or the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and further to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things and to execute all documents and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution.’’

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188, read with Rule 15 of Companies (Meeting Board and Power) 
Rules 2014, Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and other
applicable provisions, if any, including any statutory enactment(s) or reenactment(s) thereof applicable over the Company 
for the time being in force, the omnibus approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Company to enter into 
various transactions with Zodiac Developers Private Limited, an Associate Company of the Company, for an aggregate 
value of Rs. 2 Crores for a period of 12 months starting 11th November 2022 to 10th November 2023, on such terms and 
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening ensuing Annual General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or desirable to give effect to the foregoing Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to any Committee of 
Directors or any one or more Directors of the Company.’’ 

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Rustom Deboo
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12th August 2022
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Notes

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a Proxy to  
attend and vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The instrument appointing the   
Proxy should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours before  
the commencement of the Meeting.
A person can act as proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than    
ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of  
the total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as Proxy and such person shall   
not act as a Proxy for any other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy shall prove his identity at the time of attending    
the Meeting.
The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed must be deposited to the company at Registered Office not less than   
48 hours before the commencement of Annual General Meeting. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed.

Institutional/Corporate Members intending to send their Authorised Representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to  
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board  
Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on  
their behalf at the Meeting.

In compliance with the MCA Circular dated 5th May 2020 read with the MCA Circulars dated 8th April 2020, 13th April  
2020, 13th January 2021 and 5th May 2022 and SEBI Circulars dated 12th May 2020, 15th January 2021 and 13th May  
2022 (collectively referred to as ‘Circulars’) Notice of Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is   
being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories or whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial Owners as received from Depositories     
on 2nd September 2022. Any person(s) who have acquired shares of the Company and have become members of the 
Company after the dispatch of Notice and Annual Report of the AGM by the Company and whose names appear in the 
Register of Members or Register of beneficial owners as on the cut-off date i.e., 23rd September 2022 shall view the same  
on the Company’s website: www.zodiacventures.in or may request for a copy of the same by writing to the Company at
info@zodiacventures.in or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (‘‘Registrar’’) Link Intime India Private Limited at rnt.help
desk@linkintime.co.in. Physical copies of the Notice and Annual Report would be made available to members upon  
request, which can be sent to the Company at info@zodiacventures.in along with relevant details of their shareholding.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly completed and signed mentioningtherein details of their DP        
ID and Client ID/ Folio No. along with the copy of Annual Report to the Meeting. The Attendance slip is annexed with this    
Annual Report. Members, who hold shares inelectronic form, are requested to bring their Depository ID Number and Client   
ID Number to facilitate their identification for recording attendance at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The business set out in the Notice will also be transacted through remote electronic voting (e-voting) system and the 
Company is providing facility for voting by remote electronic means. Instructions and other information relating to remote   
e-voting are given in the Notice under Note No.24.

The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘‘Act’’), in respect of the Special  
Business to be transacted at the 41st Annual General Meeting is annexed herewith.

The Ballot Form should be signed by the Member as per the specimen signature registered with theCompany. In case the     
shares are jointly held, the Form should be completed and signed by the firstnamed holder and in his/her absence, by the  
next named holder. Holders of Power of Attorney(POA) on behalf of a Member may vote on the Form mentioning the 
Registration No. of the POA registered with the Company or attach notarially attested copy of the POA. Unsigned Form 
will be rejected.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection 
at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on all working days except, Sundays, up to and  
including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Members desirous of getting any information in relation to the Company’s Annual Report 2021-22 are requested to  
address their query (ies) well in advance, i.e., at least 10 (ten) days before the Meeting, to info@zodiacventures.in to  
enable the Management to keep the information readily available at the Meeting.

Members, whose email address is not registered with the Company or with their respective Depository Participant/s,  
and who wish to receive the Notice of the 41st AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2021-22 and all other
communication sent by the Company, from time to time, can get their email address registered.The Notice of the 41st    
AGM and the Annual Report including therein the Audited Financial Statements for the year 2021-22, will be available on  
the website of the Company at www.zodiacventures.in. The same can also be accessed from the website of the Stock 
Exchange i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of NSDL 
i.e.,www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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Shareholders are requested to quote their Folio No. or DP ID - Client ID, as the case may be, in all correspondence with the 
Company or Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to submit their PAN to their respective DPs with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts whereas members holding shares in physical mode are required to submit their PAN to 
theCompany/RTA.

Relevant details in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, in terms of Regulations 36(3) of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings are also annexed to this notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India (“ICSI”) and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations read with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Company is
providing remote e-Voting facility to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. The ‘Cut-off Date’ 
for determining Shareholders entitled to facility of voting by remote e-voting has been fixed as 23rd September 2022.

In accordance with the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and the Share
Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24th September 2022 to 30th September 2022 (both days
inclusive).

For Members holding shares in physical form, please send scan copy of a signed request letter mentioning your folio 
number, complete address, email address to be registered along with scanned self- attested copy of the PAN and any
document (such as Driving License, Passport, Bank Statement, AADHAR) supporting the registered address of the Member, 
by email to the Company’s emailaddress.
For the Members holding shares in demat form, please update your email address through your respective Depository 
Participant/s.

In terms of the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rules made there under, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Shareholders in respect of the shares held by them. Shareholders who have not yet registered their
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Shareholders holding shares in
dematerialized form are requested to submit the said details to their Depository Participant(s) and the Shareholders 
holding shares in physical form, are requested to submit the said details to the Company or Company’sRegistrar.

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations and various notifications issued in that regard, 
requests for effecting transfer of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be 
processed from 1st April 2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. In view of the 
same, Shareholders are requested to take action to dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company promptly.

Members holding shares in multiple folios are requested to submit their application to Registrar for consolidation of folios 
into single folio.

Equity shares of the Company are under compulsory demat trading by all investors. Considering the advantage of scripless 
trading, members are encouraged to consider dematerialization of their shareholding so as to avoid inconvenience in 
future.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has undertaken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance’ and allowed companies to 
share documents with its shareholders through the electronic mode. The Shareholders who are holding shares in
dematerialized form and have not yet registered their e-mail IDs with their Depository Participant are requested to register 
their Email ID at the earliest, to enable the Company to use the same for serving documents to them electronically,
hereafter. Shareholders holding shares in physical form may kindly provide their Email ID to the Registrar & Transfer Agent 
of the Company. The support of the Shareholders for the ‘Green initiative’ is solicited.

The Route Map to the AGM venue is annexed along with this Notice.

Pursuant to Sections 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the amount of dividend remaining unpaid/unclaimed for a period 
of 7 years from the date of transferring such amount to unpaid dividend account shall be transferred to the Investor 
Education Protection Fund also Pursuant to Section 124(6) of the Companies Act 2013, all shares in respect of which 
dividend has not been paid or claimed for 7 consecutive years or more shall be transferred by the Company in the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund the Fund established by Central Government. Members who have not yet encashed their 
dividend warrants for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2015 and onwards are advised to make their claims without 
any further delay and the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend amounts lying with the 
Company on the website of the Company (www.zodiacventures.in) and also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.
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Voting through electronic means
In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administra-
tion) Rules, 2014 and the Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, the Company is pleased to provide the Mem-
bers facility of ‘remote e-voting’ (e-voting from a place other than venue of AGM) through National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) as an alternative, to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions mentioned in the Notice of the AGM. The 
Company has appointed Mr. S.K. Jain, Practicing Company Secretary, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner. E-voting is optional.

Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attendthe meeting but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again at the meeting.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Access to NSDL e-Voting system
Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual sharehold-
ers holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eser-
vices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services 
home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
NSDL Mobile App is Available on:
 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Type of shareholders  Login Method

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 27th September 2022 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, 29th September 
2022 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names 
appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., 23rd September 2022 may 
cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23rd September 2022.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

1

2

3

4
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Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi/Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on 
New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting 
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on 
NSDL to cast your vote.

If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
provided links for the respective ESP i.e.NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

1

2

3

4

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their
depository participants

1

Important note: 
Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Login Type  Helpdesk details

Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
 
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Mem-
ber’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you 
can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

1

2

3
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Your User ID details are given below:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

Manner of holding shares i.e.
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL.

1

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
CDSL.

2

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

For Members holding shares in Physical Form.3

4
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Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communi-
cated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you 
to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on 
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf 
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID 
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial pass-
word’. 
If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids 
are not registered.

a

b

c
i

ii

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option avail-
able on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mention-
ing your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL

a

b

c

d

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose 
voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you 
wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

4

5

6

7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Step 2
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Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) 
of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signato-
ry(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to skjaincs1944@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. 
In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 
22 44 30  or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as 
on the cut-off date of 23rd September 2022.

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after the dispatch of notice and 
holding shares as on the cut-off date, i.e., 23rd September 2021, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing 
user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using ‘Forgot User 
Details/Password’ option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contacting NSDL at 1800-222-990.

A member may participate at the AGM even after exercising the right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be 
allowed to vote again at the AGM.

A person whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or voting at the AGM.

Mr. Shubh Karan Jain of S.K. Jain and Company, Practising Company Secretary (M. No. 1473 and C.P. No. 3076) has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the e-voting process in a 
fair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of the discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow physical 
ballot with the assistance of Scrutinizer for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by 
availing the e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast vide polling at the AGM and there-
after shall unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting, in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment 
of the Company. He shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, not later 
than 48 (forty-eight) hours of the conclusion of the AGM, to the Chairman or the person authorised by him in writing, who 
shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

A member can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e., either through e-voting or by Physical Ballot. If a Member casts votes 
by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and the Ballot shall be treated as invalid. 

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company at www.zodi-
acventures.in and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of result by the 
Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing. The results will also be communicated to the Stock Exchange where the 
shares of the Company are listed.

General Guidelines for shareholders
1

2

3

4

5
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password 
and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:
In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certifi-
cate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
by email toinfo@zodiacventures.in.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) toinfo@zodiacventures.in If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for 
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual sharehold-
ers holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/reappointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting:

Annexure to Notice

Mr. Jimit ShahName of Director

IndianNationality

40Age

B. ComQualifications

20 yearsExperience

Designing and planning of architectural projectsExpertise in specific functional areas

NATerms and conditions of reappointment

NILRemuneration sought to be paid

NILRemuneration last drawn

7.41%Details of shareholding in the company

1. Son of Mr. Ramesh Shah, Chairman and Whole-Time  
    Director

Details of relationship with other Directors, Manager, 
Key Managerial Person of the Company

NILChairman/Member of the Committees of the Board of 
other Companies in which he is a Director as on 31st 
March 2022

1. Zodiac Developers Private Limited 
2. Zodiac Developers India Private Limited 
3. Mumbai Mega Foodpark Private Limited

Directorships on Board of Directors of other Companies 
as on 31st March 2022

21-5-2010Date of first appointment on the Board
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The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3

On 16th January 2022, M/s Navin Nishar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 116503W), were 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill casual vacancy caused by the resignation of erstwhile Statutory 
Auditors M/s. Pravin Chandak & Associates, Chartered Accountants by the members of the Company vide Postal Ballot. As 
per the terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, the said appointment to fill casual vacancy was to be in effect until the 
conclusion of the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company. Subsequently, the appointment of M/s Navin Nishar & 
Associates is being sought at the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company for a term of five years until the conclusion 
of the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
 
M/s Navin Nishar & Associates have conveyed their consent to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
along with the confirmation that, their appointment, if approved by the shareholders, would be within the limits prescribed 
under the Act.

The Directors recommend the resolution for approval of members. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the proposed Item No. 3.

Item No. 4

As per the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company can provide any 
loan, make investment, or give guarantee or provide any security beyond the prescribed ceiling of i) sixty percent of the 
aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or ii) hundred percent of its free 
reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more, only when Board of Directors of the Company have
unanimously approved it. Also, Company must have taken the approval of its financial institution and special resolution 
must have been passed by the members of the Company.

As a measure of achieving greater financial flexibility and to enable optimal financing structure, this permission is sought 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to give powers to the Board of Directors for making 
further investment, providing loans, or give guarantee or provide security in connection with loans to bodies corporate 
(including overseas bodies corporate) for an amount not exceeding Rs. 100 Crores. The investment(s), loan(s),
guarantee(s) and security (ies), as the case may be, will be made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. These investments are proposed to be made out of own/surplus 
funds/internal accruals, and/or any other sources, including borrowings, if necessary, to achieve long term strategic and 
business objectives. The Board accordingly recommends passing the Special Resolution mentioned in Item No. 4.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in this resolution except as members

Item No. 5

Keeping in view the Company’s existing and future financial requirements to support its business operations and for
general corporate purposes, the Company needs additional funds. For this purpose, the Company is desirous of raising 
finance from various Banks and/or Financial Institutions and/or any other lending institutions and/or Bodies Corporate 
and/or such other persons/individuals or entities as may be considered fit, which, together with the money already 
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers and financial institutions in 
the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital and the free reserves of the Company. 
Hence it is proposed to increase the maximum borrowing limits up to Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crores 
Only). Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of the Company are not allowed to borrow 
any amount exceeding the aggregate of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and security premium account unless it is 
approved by the Members of the Company by passing Special Resolution in the General Meeting.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Special Resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice 
for the approval of the Members. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the 
Resolutions, except to the extent of their equity holdings in the Company.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ZODIAC VENTURES ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 12
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Item No. 6

The Company, in the ordinary course of its business, and on Arm’s Length Basis, has entered into Architectural Service 
Agreement with Zodiac Developers Private Limited, its Associate Company, for providing architectural services for a period 
of 12 months i.e., with effect from 11th November 2022 to 10th November 2023. The Company desires to obtain an
omnibus approval from shareholders by way of ordinary resolution for the same.
 
The transactions envisaged herein are likely to amount to more than ten percent of the turnover of the Company during the 
Financial Year 2021-22 as per the latest Audited Financial Statements of the Company. Therefore, approval from 
shareholders is sought by passing Ordinary Resolution for the same pursuant to the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Second Amendment Rules, 2014 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 14th August 2014 and the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Second Amendment Rules, 2017 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
on 30th March 2017.

The Company gives below the brief details of the proposed transactions to be carried out with related parties:

PARTICULARS  DESCRIPTION

Zodiac Developers Private Limited (ZDPL)Name of the related party

ZDPL is an Associate Company of Zodiac Ventures 
Limited

Nature of relationship

Not ApplicableAny other information relevant or important for the 
members to take a decision on the proposedresolution

The Company has entered into an arrangement with 
ZDPL its subsidiary Company for providing architectur-
al services for a period of 12 months i.e. with effect 
from 11th November 2022 to 10th November 2023.
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 12th 
August 2022 has considered and recommended to 
obtain omnibus approval from shareholders by way of 
special resolution for same

Nature, material terms, monetary value, duration and 
particulars of the arrangement

The proposed arrangement is at Arm’s Length Price
and in ordinary course of business of the Company, 
considering the prevailing market conditions.

Manner of determining price & other commercial terms

1. Mr.Ramesh Shah 
2. Mr. Jimit Shah 
3. Mrs. Sunita Shah

Name of the Director/KMP who is related

No Advance Amount has been received.Any Advance received

1

2

3

4

5

7

6

In accordance with Section 102(1) and the proviso to Section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the shareholding interest 
of the promoters/Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the company in ZDPL to the extent that such shareholding is in 
excess of 2% is set out below:

     Mr. Ramesh Shah, Promoter, Chairman and Whole Time Director of the Company, holds 3,04,56,000 equity shares repre  
    senting 24.88% of the total equity share capital of ZDPL.

    Mrs. Pushpa Shah, wife of Mr. Ramesh Shah, holds 2,85,80,400 equity shares representing 23.35% of the total equity  
    share capital of ZDPL.

     Mr. Jimit Shah, Managing Director of the Company and son of Mr. Ramesh Shah, holds 1,03,60,000 equity shares repre
    senting 8.46% of the total equity share capital of ZDPL.

a

b

c
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c     Zodiac Ventures Limited had made an investment of 5,24,00,000 equity shares representing 42.81% of the total equity 
     share capital of ZDPL.
 
Except as set out above, none of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is 
concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of this Notice. Your Directors recom-
mend the resolution set out at Item No. 5 for your approval.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Rustom Deboo
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12th August 2022
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Your Directors are pleased to present the 41st Annual Report together with
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
a STANDALONE 

Net Sales/Income from operations

Other Income

       79,50,000.00 

            27,624.00 

      20,00,000.00 

-

PARTICULARS  31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Director’s Report

1

a1

b

Total Income (a+b)        79,77,624.00 20,00,000.00 

Expenditure - -2

Changes in Inventories of 
Work-In-Progress

 (11,16,345.86) -a

Employee Benefit Expense          6,92,262.00         1,86,134.00 b

Finance Cost 24,73,792.52 1,25,57,934.00 c

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 42,967.00             3,249.00 d

Other Expenses 19,15,133.80         7,52,686.00 e

Loss on Sale of Investment in Subsidiary 95,00,000.00 -f1

Total  Expenditure (a+b+c+d) 1,35,07,809.46 1,35,00,003.00 

Profit before Exceptional Items
& Tax (1-2)

(55,30,185.46) (1,15,00,003.00)3

Exceptional Items - -4

Profit before Tax (3-4)  (55,30,185.46)   (1,15,00,003.00)5

Tax Expenses - -6

Income Tax - -a

Deferred Tax - -b

Profit after tax  (5-6) (55,30,185.46) (1,15,00,003.00)7

Other Comprehensive Income (4,97,80,000.00) 53,3678

Total Comprehensive Income (5,53,10,185.46)   (1,15,00,003.00)9

Reserves excluding Revaluation  
Reserves as per Balance Sheet of 
previous accounting year

1,93,58,508.22    7,46,68,693.68 10
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b CONSOLIDATED

Net Sales/Income from operations

Other Income

79,50,000.00 

23,26,599.00 

12,41,01,812.00 

20,98,504.00 

PARTICULARS  31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

a1

b

Total Income (a+b) 3,22,36,599.00 12,62,00,316.00 

Expenditure -     (53,31,515.75)

2

Changes in Inventories of 
Work-In-Progress

(7,23,33,397.49)    3,79,75,095.35 a

Employee Benefit Expense 1,91,97,834.00        4,87,72,143.93  b

Finance Cost 5,86,84,152.14 32,37,571.44 c

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 24,54,223.36      3,96,48,519.71 d

Other Expenses 1,79,64,997.45         12,43,01,814.68 e

Prior Period Expenses Written Back
(Refer Note No.-6)

2,19,60,000.00 -

Total  Expenditure (a+b+c+d) 2,59,67,809.46 1,35,00,003.00 

Profit before Exceptional Items
& Tax (1-2)

62,68,789.54 18,98,501.32 3

Exceptional Items - -4

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (3-4) 62,68,789.54   18,98,501.32 5

Tax Expenses - -6

Income Tax 21,42,620.00 5,28,150.00 a

Deferred Tax 2,017.00 (97,578.00)b

a

b

a

b

Profit/(Loss) for the period  (5-6) 41,24,152.54 14,67,929.32 7

Other Comprehensive Income (5,92,80,000.00) -

(5,51,55,847.46) 14,67,929.32 

- -

 - -

1,68,05,988.99 7,36,49,606.92 

8

Equity Holders of the parent 40,35,887.34 6,50,315.59 

Non Controlling Interest 88,265.20 8,17,613.72 

Total Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss) for the period (7+8)

9

Profit/(Loss) for the period
attributable to:

10

Equity Holders of the parent (5,52,44,112.66) 6,50,315.59 

Non Controlling Interest 88,265.20 8,17,613.72 

Total Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss) for the period

11

Other Equity excluding Revaluation  
Reserves 

12
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW2
During the year under review, the Net Loss after Tax on standalone basis during the year under review was Rs.5,53,10,185 
as against Net Loss after Tax of Rs.2,00,003 during the previous financial year.

During the year under review, the Net Profit after Tax on consolidated basis during the year under review was Rs. 
5,52,44,113 as against Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 6,50,316 during the previous financial year.

As explained in detail under Note 03 to the financial results forming part of this Annual Report, the primary reason for the 
loss incurred on a standalone basis is the loss incurred by the Company on sale of its investment in its then subsidiary 
company Zodiac Developers Private Limited amounting to Rs. 95,00,00,000.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:3
The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.
Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of
the Act is not applicable.

ASSOCIATE COMPANY:4
The Company has the following Associate company:

Zodiac Developers Private Limited

The Company holds 42.81% of the Equity Share Capital of Zodiac Developers Private Limited, an erstwhile subsidiary of the 
Company, which is engaged in business of construction or redevelopment of slum areas, cessed buildings by housing 
societies or old buildings belonging to Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai. During the year, on 31st March 2022, 
Zodiac Developers Private Limited ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company by virtue of sale of 1,00,00,000 shares held by 
the Company to Promoter and Managing Director of the Company Mr. Jimit Shah, bringing down the Company’s share in 
Zodiac Developers Private Limited from 50.98% to 42.81%.

Mumbai Mega Foodpark Private Limited

Mumbai Mega Foodpark Private Limited was incorporated during the year, on 16th February 2022, engaged in the business 
of setting up Agro Processing Clusters, also known as Food Parks. As on that date, the Company held 45.39% of its Equity 
Share Capital. Currently, the Company holds 42.12% of its Equity Share Capital. 
 
In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has 
prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Further, a statement containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of the Associate Company in the prescribed 
Form AOC-1 has been annexed as ‘‘ANNEXURE 1’’ which shall form a part of this Board Report.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited Financial Statements, including the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and related information of the Company and its Associate are available on the website of the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER DISCLOSURES:5
The prescribed particulars of employees required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as 
‘‘ANNEXURE 4’’which shall form a part of this Board Report.

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is not applicable as the 
Company has not employed any employee whose remuneration falls within the purview of Rule 5(2) of the said Rules.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:6
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Return for the finan-
cial year ended 31st March 2022 made under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is given in ‘‘ANNEXURE 3’’in the 
prescribed Form MGT-9, which forms part of this report, and has also been placed on the website of the Company and can 
be accessed at www.zodiacventures.in.
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The Company is not carrying any manufacturing operations. Therefore, there is no material information to be given under 
Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption. The operations of the Company are not power intensive. The Company 
is however taking every possible step to conserve the energy whenever possible. It has not imported any technology.

i CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company has not incurred any expenditure in Research and Development on Technology Absorption.

ii TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

There is no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the Financial Year under review.

iii FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

10

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:11
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association 
of the Company, Mr. Jimit Shah, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

In terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

None of the Independent Directors had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during Financial Year 
2021-22. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 
and Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.

Mr. Ramesh Shah, Chairman and Whole-Time Director; Mr. Jimit Ramesh Shah, Managing Director, and
Mrs. Sunita Jimit Shah, Director are related inter se.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company other than them are related inter se.

The information as required to be disclosed under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 in case of
reappointment is forming part of the Notice.

As per the information available by the Company, none of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being
appointed as Directors as specified in Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

NAME  DESIGNATION

Managing DirectorMr. Jimit Shah

Mr. Ramesh Shah

Mr. Vipul Khona

Mr. Rustom Deboo

Chairman and Whole Time Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

DIVIDEND:7
The Board has not recommended any dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22

SHARE CAPITAL:8
During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights, nor has it granted any 
stock options or sweat equity. On 25th February 2022, the Company allotted 29,95,000 Warrants Convertible into Equity 
Shares on Preferential Basis to Promoter and Non-Promoters. As on 31st March 2022, Mr. Jimit Shah, Managing Director, 
holds 10,00,000 Warrants Convertible into Equity Shares of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

9

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of 
the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial Statement relates and the date of this report.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:14
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended from time 
to time, your Directors state that:
In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and the judgments and estimates that have 
been made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2022 and of  the  profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

Internal financial controls have been laid down and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively;

Proper Systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own perfor-
mance and that of its committees as well as performance of the Directors individually. Feedback was sought by way of a 
structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as participation, adequate preparation, 
contribution to strategy and other areas, quality of decision making, high quality of debate with robust and probing discus-
sions etc. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee evaluated the performance of the Directors. Independent Direc-
tors at a separate meeting held by them have evaluated the performance of the non-Independent Directors and evaluated 
the performance of the Chairman taking into consideration the views of Managing Director. The Board of Directors have 
also evaluated the performance of each of the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 
evaluationprocess.

i

ii

iii

iv

v

vi

BOARD MEETINGS:15
There were nine meetings of the Board held during the year. The attendance details have been provided later in this 
report. Board Meetings were held on 30-06-2021, 13-08-2021, 27-10-2021, 11-11-2021, 26-11-2021, 15-12-2021, 
13-01-2022, 14-02-2022 and 31-03-2022 during the Financial Year 2021-22.

POLICIES ON DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND APPOINTMENT:16
The Company’s policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 annexed hereto as ‘‘ANNEXURE 5’’and forms a part of this report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:12
The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors as required under Section 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of meeting the criteria of independence provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Further, the Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Code of Conduct for Directors and senior management.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:13
The separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 10th February 2022 for the Financial Year 2021-22.
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Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings was as follows:

Name of the Director

9Mr. Jimit Shah

Mr. Ramesh Shah

Mrs. Sunita Shah

Mr. Aakash Parikh

9

9

9

Mr. Sahil Visaria 9

9

9

9

9

9

 Meetings eligible to attend  Meetings attended

B AUDIT COMMITTEE
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OFREFERENCEi
Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 that inter-alia, include 
overseeing financial reporting processes, reviewing periodic financial results, Auditor’s independence and performance, 
Audit process, Financial Statements and adequacy of internal control systems with the Management and adequacy of 
internal  audit functions, discussions with the auditors about the scope of audit including the observations of the Auditors 
and discussions with internal  auditor or any significant findings, approval of transactions with related parties, scrutiny of 
inter-corporate loans and investments, valuation of undertaking or assets evaluation  of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems and review the functioning of  the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

COMPOSITION, NAMES OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRPERSONii
As on 31st March 2022, the Audit Committee comprised of three Directors, of whom two were Independent, Non-Executive 
Directors and one an Executive Director, all of them possessing knowledge of corporate finance, accounts and company 
law, The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31st March 2022 was as follows:

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEARiii
During the Year ended 31st March 2022, seven Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the following dates:
 
30-06-2021, 13-08-2021, 11-11-2021, 26-11-2021, 15-12-2021, 14-02-2022 and 31-03-2022.

The Attendance of the Chairman and the members of Audit Committee at the meetings held during the year under review 
was as under:

Name of the Director

7Mr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Jimit Shah

Mr. Sahil Visaria

7

7

7

7

7

Meetings eligible to attend  Meetings attended

Audit Committee  Designation

ChairmanMr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Jimit Shah

Mr. Sahil Visaria

Member

Member

A BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2022
COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES:17

Name of the Director  Designation

Managing DirectorMr. Jimit Shah

Mr. Ramesh Shah

Mrs. Sunita Shah

Mr. Aakash Parikh

Chairman and Whole Time Director

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

Mr. Sahil Visaria Independent Director
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C NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCEi
To periodically approve the remuneration package of Whole-Time Directors and ensure appropriate disclosure of the same, 
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, formulation of criteria for evaluation of 
independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity and recommend appointment of Directors and 
appointment and removal in senior management.

COMPOSITION, NAMES OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRPERSONii
As on 31st March 2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised three Non-Executive Directors and one 
Executive Director, and the Company Secretary acts as Ex-Officio Secretary of the Committee.

MEETING AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEARiii
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 27-10-2021. Attendance of members at Committee Meeting during 
the year under review was as follows:

REMUNERATION POLICYiv
No Director has been paid any Remuneration, or sitting fees and Executive Director, the remaining directors do not receive 
any remuneration, or sitting fees for attending any of the Board or Committee Meetings

DETAILS OF REMUNERATIONv
The details of Remuneration package, sitting fees paid etc., to directors during the year ended 31st March 2021 for 
information of members, are furnished here below:

THE NAMES OF THE MEMBERS & CHAIRPERSON OF THE REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE AS ON 31ST MARCH 2022 ARE AS UNDER:

Audit Committee  Designation

ChairmanMr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Ramesh Shah

Mrs. Sunita Shah

Member

Member

Mr. Sahil Visaria Member

Name of the Director

1Mr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Ramesh Shah

Mrs. Sunita Shah

1

1

1

1

1

Mr. Sahil Visaria 1 1

Meetings eligible to attend  Meetings attended

iii The Attendance of the Chairman and the members of Audit Committee at the meetings held during the year under review 
was as under:

Name of the Director

7Mr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Jimit Shah

Mr. Sahil Visaria

7

7

7

7

7

Meetings eligible to attend  Meetings attended
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Particulars

-Remuneration

Salary

Others

-

-

-

-

-

Appointment valid up to
Stock Option Details

- -

Total - -

Jimit Shah  Ramesh Shah

PAID TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:v

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEED
As per the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has constituted Stakeholders Relation-
ship Committee.

The “Stakeholder Relationship Committee” deals with approval of share transfer/transmission, issue of duplicate share 
certificates, Split and consideration requests, rematerialization of shares and other matters relating to transfer and
registration of shares.

COMPOSITION
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31st March 2021 is as under;

Name of the Director  Designation

ChairmanMr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Sahil Visaria

Mrs. Sunita Shah

Member

Member

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEAR
During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met on 11/02/2022.
Attendance of members at Committee Meeting during the year under review was as follows:

Name of the Director

1Mr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Sahil Visaria

Mrs. Sunita Shah

1

1

1

1

1

Meetings eligible to attend  Meetings attended

PAID TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:v

Name of the Director

Mrs. Sunita Shah

Mr. Aakash Parikh

Mr. Anil Ghagare

Mr. Sahil Visaria

-

-

-

-

Board Meeting

-

-

-

-

Audit Committee

-

-

-

-

Nomination &
Remuneration Meeting
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The Reports given by the Statutory Auditors for the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March 2022 read with explanatory notes thereon consisted of a qualified opinion, the basis of which is set out in detail 
in the Auditors’ Reports forming part of the Annual Report. The explanation from the Board under Section 134 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has adversely impacted our Company as well, like other entities. The Company 
suspended operations in compliance with lockdown restrictions issued by the Central and State Governments. However, 
the Company has resumed operations, only in a phased manner. Due to this reason, the Management has not beenable to 
carry out the impairment testing, as mentioned in the basis of the quailed opinion expressed by the Auditors in their reports.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT2
M/s R. N. Shah and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,were appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit of the 
Companyfor the Financial Year 2021-22 as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereun-
der and applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. The Secretarial Audit 
Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 forms part of Annual Report as “ANNEXURE 6” to the Board’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT:19
The Company has laid down the procedures to inform to the Board about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures, and the Board has formulated Risk Management Policy to ensure that  the Board, its Audit Committee and its 
Executive Management should collectively identify the risks impacting the Company’s business and document their 
process risk identification and risk minimization as a part of a Risk Managementpolicy/strategy.

The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, Credit Risk, Foreign Exchange and Interest Risk, Competition, Business Risk, 
Technology Obsolescence, Investments, Retention of Talent and Expansion of Facilities, etc. Business Risk, inter–alia, 
further includes financial risk, political risk, legal risk, etc. The Board reviews the risk trend, exposure and potential impact 
analysis and prepares risk mitigation plan, if necessary. The Risk Management Policy is included in this Report as 
“ANNEXURE 7”.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:20
During the year, the Company has entered into contracts/arrangements/transactions with Related Parties at arm’s length 
price under the section 188 of Companies Act 2013. Further, a Statement containing the salient features of the Related 
Party Transactions in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed as “ANNEXURE 2” and which shall form a part of this 
Board’s Report. In accordance with Accounting Standard 18, the Related Party Transactions are disclosed under Note No. 
2.16 of the Standalone Financial Statements.

PARTICLUARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS21
The details of the Loans, Guarantees or Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 forms part of notes to the Financial Statements.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT1
On 16th January 2022, M/s Navin Nishar & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to fill casual vacancy caused by the resignation of erstwhile Statutory Auditors M/s. Pravin Chandak &
Associates, Chartered Accountants by the members of the Company vide Postal Ballot. As per the terms of Section 139 of 
the Companies Act, the said appointment to fill casual vacancy was to be in effect until the conclusion of the 41st Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. Subsequently, the appointment of M/s Navin Nishar & Associates is being sought at the 
41st Annual General Meeting of the Company.
 
In this regard, the Company had received a Certificate from the Auditors to the effect that if they are appointed it would be 
in accordance with the provision of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS AND REPORTS18
The matters related to Auditors and their Reports are as under:



ZODIAC VENTURES ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 24

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY:24
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
The following is summary of Sexual Harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year:

      Number of Complaints received: NIL

      Number of Complaints disposed of: NIL

a

b

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:25
No significant or material orders have been passed by Securities Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges, Tribunal or 
Courts, during the year under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:26
The Provisions of Section 135 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to 
the Company

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:27
During the year under review, the Board of Directors have not recommended any amount to be transferred to reserves

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:28
The Directors take this opportunity to thank Company’s customers, shareholders, suppliers, bankers, Central and State 
Government for their consistent support to the Company.  The Board also wishes to place on record their appreciation for 
the hard work, dedicationand commitment of the employees at all levels. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the 
employees have enabled the Company to grow in the competitive environment. The Board looks forward to their
continued support and understanding in the years to come.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Ramesh Shah

Chairman and Whole-Time Director
DIN: 01580767

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12th August 2022

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:22
The Company has an adequate Internal Control System commensurate with size and nature of its business to safeguard 
all assets and to ensure their efficient productivity. The Company has continued to keep focus on processes and controls. 
The Company has a suitable internal control system for the business processes, operations, financial reporting,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Wherever deemed necessary, internal control systems are also 
reassessed and corrective action is taken, if required.

The statutory auditors of the Company have audited the Financial Statements included in this annual report and has 
issued a report on our Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting as defined in Section 143 of the Act.

VIGIL MECHANISM23
As per the provision of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, with Rule 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to establish an effective Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to 
report genuine concerns.

In line with the best Corporate Governance practices, Company has put in place a system through which the Directors 
and Employees may report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct & Ethics without fear of reprisal.

The Directors and Employees may report to the Compliance Officer and have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee.
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Annexure-1 
FORM AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary/Associate Companies

Name of the
Associate Company

 Zodiac Developers
Private Limited

Mumbai Mega Foodpark
Private Limited

Financials as on

Reporting Currency

Exchange Rate

Capital

Reserves

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Investment Other than Investment
in Subsidiary/Associate

Turnover

Profit before Taxation

Provision for Tax (Including Deferred Tax)

Profit after Tax

Proposed Dividend

% of Holding

Country

March 31, 2022

Rupees

-

12,24,00,000

6,47,33,597

1,81,24,49,661

1,81,24,49,661

0

22,98,975

21,44,637

1,54,338

-

42.81%

India

-

NA (Company was 
incorporated on

16th February 2022

Rupees

-

1,00,000

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

-

42.12%

India

-



NILName(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

NIL

NIL

NIL

date(s) of approval by the Board NIL

Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

NILJustification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions

NILDate on which the special resolution was passed in 
general meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188
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Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis1

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

Zodiac Developers Private Limited is a related party; it 
was then a Subsidiary Company of Zodiac Ventures 
Limited

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

The Company had entered into an arrangement with 
ZDPL, then its subsidiary Company, for providing 
architectural services for a period of 12 months i.e. with 
effect from 11th November 2021 to 10th November 2022. 
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on
13th August 2021 had considered and recommended to 
obtain omnibus approval from shareholders by way of 
ordinary resolution for same

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 13-08-2021

Amount paid as advances, if any:

For a period of One Year which will expire on
10th November 2022

NA

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any:

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis2

a

b

c

d

e

f

Annexure-2 
FORM NO. AOC - 2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section 

(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8

(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)



Annexure-3
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31st March 2022
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act,2013 and

 rule12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)Rules,2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:1

L45209MH1981PLC023923CIN

19/02/1981Registration Date

19/02/1981Registration Date

Company Limited By Shares/
Indian Non-Government Company

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

404, Dev Plaza, 68, S.V. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400058, Maharashtra,

Address of the Registered office and contact details

Link Intime India Private Ltd. 
[formerly Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd.]
C101, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400083
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in
Phone:+91 22 4918 6000
Fax: +91 22 4918 6060

YesWhether listed company

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY2
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Name and Description of 
main products/ services

Technical Consultancy in 
relation to Architectural 
and Engineering Activities

71711 100.00%

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

 % to total turnover
of the company

1

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES3
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Name and address of
the Company

Zodiac Developers 
Private Limited

U45201MH1995PTC086758 Section 2(6)

CIN / GLN

Associate

Holding / subsidiary/
associate

Applicable
section

42.81%

% of shares held

1



SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):4

CATEGORY-WISE SHAREHOLDINGi

Catergory of 
Shareholders

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)Individual/HUF

% Change 
during the Year

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
1-4- 2021

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
31-03-2022

b) Central Govt
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs – Individuals
b) Other – Individuals

Sub-total(A)(1):

c) Bodies Corp
d) Banks / FI
e) Any other
Sub-total (A)(2):
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal 
share capital up to 
Rs. 1 lakh

ii)Individual 
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 lakh

B. Public Shareholding

c) Others
IEPF

1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / FI
c) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)

g) FIIs

Sub-total (B)(1):
(2)Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

f) Insurance     
   Companies

h)Foreign Venture  
   Capital Funds

Hindu Undivided 
Family

Non-Resident 
Indians

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

i) Others (specify)

i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals

Clearing Members

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

2,39,89,640 0 2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640 0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640
0

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

0 2,39,89,640 64.33

0 0 00
0 0 00

1,31,24,340 1,76,020 1,33,00,360 35.67

19,52,491 6,020 19,58,511 5.25

67,73,148 1,70,000 69,43,148 18.62

0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

38,21,337
0

0

0
0

0

38,21,337
0

0

10.25
0

3490 3490 0.03

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

11,500

0

0 11,500 0.03

00 0 0

00 0 0

05,52,373 5,52,373 1.48

010,001 10,001 0.01

1,76,0203,71,13,980 3,72,90,000 100.00

1,31,24,340 1,33,00,360 35.671,76,020

2,39,89,640 0 2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640 0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640
0

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

0 2,39,89,640 64.33

0 0 00

0 0 0 0

19,52,491 6,020 19,58,511 5.25

67,73,148 1,70,000 69,43,148 18.62

0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

38,21,337
0

0

0
0

0

38,21,337
0

0

10.25
0

3490 3490 0.03

0

0
0
0
0

0

0 0 0

0
0
0
0

11,500

0

0 11,500 0.03

00 0 0

00 0 0

05,52,373 5,52,373 1.48

010,001 10,001 0.01

1,76,0203,71,13,980 3,72,90,000 100.00

1,31,24,340 1,33,00,360 35.671,76,020

2,39,89,640 0 2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640 0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640
0

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

0 2,39,89,640 64.33

0 0 0
0 0 0

0

1,31,24,340 1,76,020 1,33,00,360 35.67

27,44,628 6,020 27,50,648 7.38

65,02,201 1,70,000 66,72,201 17.89

0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

31,97,046
0

0

0
0

0

0

0

8.57
0

9295 9295 0.02

0

0
0
0
0

0

00 0

0 0
0
0
0

11,500

0

0 11,500 0.03

00 0 0

00 0 0

06,09,659 6,09,659 1.63

050,011 50,011 0.13

1,76,0203,71,13,980 3,72,90,000 100.00

1,31,24,340 1,33,00,360 35.671,76,020

2,39,89,640 0 2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640 0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0 0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

2,39,89,640 64.33

2,39,89,640
0

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

2,39,89,640 64.33

0 00

0 0 0 0

6,020

0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0

31,97,046
0 0

0

0
0
0
0

11,500

0

0 11,500 0.03

00 0

00 0

0

1,76,0203,71,13,980 3,72,90,000 100.00

1,31,24,340 1,33,00,360 35.67

2.12

0.73

-1.67

0.01

1.15

0.10

0

0

0

0

01,76,020Sub-total(B)(2):
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

e) Venture 
    Capital Funds

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0
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Shareholder’s
Name

Ramesh V Shah
Pushpa R Shah
Jimit R Shah

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
1-4-2021

Share holding at the end of the
Year 31-3-2022

Sunita J Shah
Yesha R Shah
Total

7.41
4.69

2,39,89,640
16,35,000
17,50,000

No. of Shares
held as on
1- 4-2020

% of total 
Shares  of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered to 
total shares

27,62,320

1,25,92,320
52,50,000

33.77
14.08

0
0
0

64.33
4.38

0
0
0

7.41
4.69

2,39,89,640
16,35,000
17,50,000

No. of Shares 
held as on 
31-3-2021

% of total 
Shares  ofthe 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered to 
total shares

27,62,320

1,25,92,320
52,50,000

33.77
14.08

0
0
0

64.33
4.38

0
0
0

SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:ii

% change in 
share holding 

during the year

0%
0%
0%

0%
0%
0%

Shareholder’s
Name

Ramesh V Shah
At the beginning of the year
At the End of the year

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
1-4-2021

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

Pushpa R Shah
At the beginning of the year
At the End of the year

-

-
52,50,000

No. of shares
Held as on 
1-4-2021

% of total 
shares of

the Company

-
1,25,92,320 33.78%

-
14.07%

No. of shares 
held as on 
31-3-2022

1,25,92,320
1,25,92,320

52,50,000
52,50,000

14.07%
14.07%

% of total 
shares of

the Company

33.78%
33.78%

Jimit R Shah
At the beginning of the year
At the End of the year
Sunita J Shah
At the beginning of the year
At the End of the year

-

-
17,50,000

-
27,62,320 7.41%

-
4.69%

27,62,320
27,62,320

17,50,000
17,50,000

4.69%
4.69%

Yesha R Shah
At the beginning of the year
At the End of the year -

1,63,500
-

4.38
1,63,500
1,63,500

4.38%
4.38%

7.41%
7.41%

CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’SHAREHOLDING:iii



Shareholder’s 
Name
Shareholder’s 
Name

Pratik Bachubhai Mujat
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
1-4-2021

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

Rahul Jhunjhunwala
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

10-12-2021

11-06-2021

30-07-2021
13-08-2021
20-08-2021
27-08-2021
10-12-2021
17-12-2021
24-12-2021
25-03-2022
31-03-2022

1,02,715
1,00,000
1,07,255
12,530
3591

31,828
3000

13,349
1,87,264

1,02,715
2,02,715
3,09,970
3.22.500
3,26,091
3,57,919
3,60,919
3,74,268
5,61,532

24-09-2021
30-09-2021
08-10-2021

4,00,000
25,000
75,000

1,00,000

4,00,000
4.25,000
5,00,000
6,00,000
6,00,000

(43347)

0

No. of shares No. of sharesFor each of the
Top 10 Shareholders

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

6,75,850 1.81%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%0

0

ReasonIncrease/ 
Decrease in

shareholding

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

% of total 
shares of

the Company

1.69%
1.69%

1.81%
6,32,503
6,32,503

6,75,850

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

0

1.61%
1.61%
1.34%

1.07%
1.14%

Dilip Nanji Chheda

Date

5,61,532

0.27%
0.54%
0.83%
0.86%
0.87%
0.96%
0.97%
1.00%
1.50%
1.50%

At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021
10-12-2021
17-12-2021
24-12-2021
31-12-2022
07-03-2022

1,25,000
47,454
2546

1,69,749
55,251

1,25,000
1,72,454
1,75,000
3.44.749
4,00,000
4,00,000

0.00% 0.00%0

0.00%0

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
At the End of the year 31-3-2022

0

At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021 0.00%0

Mahendra Abhaychand Turakhia

Mohit Dilip Chheda

0.33%
0.46%
0.47%
0.92%
1.07%
1.07%

30-07-2021
13-08-2021
17-12-2021
18-03-2022
25-03-2022

6,000
98,921
60,000

1,14,705
1,06,981

6,000
1,04,921
1,64,921
2,79,626
3,86,607
3,86,607

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
At the End of the year 31-3-2022

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

0.03%
0.28%
0.44%
0.75%
1.04%
1.04%

0.98%3,66,942At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021 0.98%3,66,942

0.97%3,61,150

Bachubhai D Arethiya

At the End of the year 31-3-2022
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021
Niraj Rajnikant Shah

3,66,942

3,61,150
3,61,150

No Change

No Change

0.98%

0.97%
0.97%

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS
(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

iv
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28-05-2021
6,56,191 6,56,1911.76% 1.76%

04-06-2021
30-07-2021
10-09-2021
17-09-2021
24-09-2021
22-10-2021
29-10-2021
05-11-2021

25,000
1100

30,000
50,000
30,000
20,000
15,000
35,000
71,006

6,31,191
6,30,091
6,00,091
5,50,091
5,20,091
5,00,091
4,85,091
4,50,091
3,79,085

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

1.69%
1.68%
1.61%
1.47%
1.39%
1.34%
1.30%
1.20%
1.02%

17-12-2021
07-01-2022

57,000
19,910

3,22,085
3,02,175

Transfer
Transfer

0.86%
0.81%

07-01-2022 19,910 3,02,175Transfer 0.81%

Shreya Hari Muzat
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

30-07-2021
5,50,000 5,50,0001.47% 1.47%

06-08-2021
13-08-2021
10-09-2021
17-09-2021
24-10-2021

27,000
50,000
50,000
10,000
55,100
20,000

5,23,000
4,73,000
4,23,000
4,13,000
3,57,900
3,37,900
2,87,356
2,87,356

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
Transfer

29-10-2021 50,544 Transfer

1.40%
1.26%
1.13%
1.10%
0.96%
0.91%
1.77%
1.77%

Jitendra Bhimshi Shah
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

0.80%3,00,000
At the End of the year 31-3-2022
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021
Hardik Amrut Shah

3,00,000
3,00,000No Change

0.80%
0.80%
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Name of Director and/or Key 
Managerial Personnel

Name of Director and/or Key 
Managerial Personnel

Ramesh Shah (Whole Time Director)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021
No Movement During the Year

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
1-4-2021

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

Jimit Shah (Managing Director)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

-

-

27,62,320

No. of shares % of total 
shares of

the Company

-
1,25,92,320 33.77%

-

7.41%

No. of shares

1,25,92,320
-

27,62,320

27,62,320

7.41%

7.41%

% of total 
shares of

the Company

-
33.77%

Sunita Shah (Director)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022 --

17,50,000 4.69% 17,50,000

17,50,000

No Movement During the Year -- - -

No Movement During the Year -- - -

At the End of the year 31-3-2022 -- 1,25,92,320 33.77%

4.69%

4.69%

Aakash Parikh (Independent Director)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021
No Movement During the Year

Sahil Visaria (Independent Director)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022

-

-

0

-
0 0

-

0

0
-

0

0

0

0

-
0

Vipul Khona (Chief Financial officer)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022 --

0 0 0

0

No Movement During the Year -- - -

No Movement During the Year -- - -

At the End of the year 31-3-2022 -- 0 0

0

0

Rustom Deboo (Company Secretary)
At the beginning of the year 1-4-2021

At the End of the year 31-3-2022 --

0 0 0

0
No Movement During the Year -- - -

0

0

SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:v

Name of Director and/or Key 
Managerial Personnel

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid

Total (i+ii+iii)

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

4,56,09,451

4,56,09,451

NIL
NIL

4,56,09,451

4,56,09,451

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL1,15,78,219 1,15,78,219

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

Addition
Reduction

NIL
NIL
NIL

4,24,74,414
3,40,31,232

NIL
NIL
NIL

84,43,182
4,24,74,414
3,40,31,232

84,43,182

Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

1,15,78,219
NIL
NIL

1,15,78,219

iii) Interest accrued but not due

INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

5
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL:6

REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORSAND/OR MANAGER:A

Particulars of 
Remuneration

1) Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section   
    17(1)ofthe Income-tax Act,1961

Name of MD/ WTD/ Manager Total Amount

2) Stock Option
3) Sweat Equity

MD
Jimit Shah

WTD
Ramesh Shah

Nil Nil Nil

4) Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5) Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
      Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
      section 7(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil

Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTDC

Particulars of 
Remuneration

1) Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section   
    17(1)ofthe Income-tax Act,1961

Total Amount

2) Stock Option
3) Sweat Equity

Company Secretary 
Rustom Deboo

CFO
Vipul Khona

2,49,900 0
0

2,49,900

4) Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5) Others, please specify
-bonus
Total

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
      Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
      section 7(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil

Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil

2,49,900 2,49,900

REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:B

Particulars of 
Remuneration

1. Independent Directors

Fee for attending board / committee meetings

Total Amount

Commission
Others, please specify

Aakash Parikh Sahil Visaria

Total (1)

Nil Nil
Nil Nil

Nil Nil
Nil Nil

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board / committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify

Sunita Shah

Total (2)

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Nil
Nil
Nil
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PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:7

Appeal made, if 
any (give 
Details)

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/
Compounding
Fees imposed

Authority [RD 
/NCLT/ 
COURT]

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

N/A

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief DescriptionType

A. COMPANY

Penalty N/A
Punishment N/A

N/A N/AN/ACompounding

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
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Mr. Jimit Shah
0

Mr. Ramesh Shah
0

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 
median Remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year;

1

NAthe percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
Employees in the financial year

3

1the number of Permanent Employees on
the rolls of the Company;

4

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company.

6

There was no increase in the remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel

average percentage increase already made in the 
Salaries of Employees other than the Managerial 
Personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out  
ifthere  are  any  exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration;

5

Company Secretary 
CFO Nil
Other KMPs Nil

The percentage increase in remuneration
of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year;

2

Annexure-4 
DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,2014 ARE GIVEN BELOW:
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Annexure-5 
ZODIAC VENTURES LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
INTRODUCTION
Considering that human resources are invaluable assets of a company, to pay equitable remuneration to all Directors, key 
managerial personnel and employees of the company, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with 
the goals of the company and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 this policy on nomination and 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management has been formulated by the 
Nomination  and Remuneration/Compensation Committee (“NRC”) and approved by the Board of Directors  of  the  
Company in their meeting held on 2nd March 2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto.

The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors, KMP, senior management 
personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:
To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 
to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.
Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance, 
dedication, and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create 
competitive advantage.

To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review theplan. To assist the Board in fulfilling
responsibilities.

This Policy is applicable to Directors (Executive and Non Executive), Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
Personnel

DEFINITIONS
“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Directors” means Directors of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a 
Whole-time Director; Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Management” means Senior Management means the personnel of the company who are members of its core 
management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the executive 
directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them 
therein.



POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

a

b

1

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertiseand experience of the person for appoint-
ment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for 
appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a 
person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained the age 
of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy 
years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the 
notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

Appointment Criteria and Qualifications1

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel at 
regular interval (yearly).

Evaluation3

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act,  rules and regulations there 
under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

Removal4

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevail-
ing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in 
the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company

Retirement5

a

b

Managing Director/Whole-time Director:
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director 
for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re- appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of 
term

Independent Director:
- An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be 
eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the 
Board's report.

- No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, but such 
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of  three years of ceasing to become an Independent 
Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly orindirectly.

- At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies 
as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other 
number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Term /Tenure2
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POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc. shall be governed as 
per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force. 
The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force.

Remuneration to Managing Director / Executive / Non Executive / Independent Director 
/ KMP / Senior Management Personnel:

1

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and
reviewing its effectiveness;

Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Independent Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in accordance 
with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any other 
applicable Act, rules and regulations or any other reasonable ground, the Committee may recommend to the Board for 
removal of a Director, KMP, or Senior Management Personnel subject to provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules 
and regulations.

DUTIES IN RELATION TO NOMINATION MATTERS

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such  other factors as 
the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration  of the members of the Board.

Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working 
of theCompany.

DUTIES IN RELATION TO REMUNERATION MATTERS

The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in supplement and better imple-
mentation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required and also by the Compliance 
Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the change in the policy.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

c

b

a
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Annexure-6 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ZODIAC VENTURES LIMITED
404, Dev Plaza, 68, S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400058.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Zodiac Ventures Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records main-
tained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representa-
tives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015;

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

Following Regulations and/or Guidelines of SEBI are not applicable to the Company for Financial year ended 31st March 
2022:
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of  India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,2018; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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The Labour laws applicable to the Company viz.:
The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and rules made there under;

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and rules made thereunder;

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and rules made thereunder;

The Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act,1986

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;

The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923 (earlier known as Workmen’s Compensation Act,
1923) and rules made thereunder;

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and rules made there under;

Other Laws such as:-
Maharashtra Shops & Establishments (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 2017

Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002

The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956

Maharashtra Professional Tax Act, 1975

The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

The provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings – The same are not applicable 
to the Company as there is no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that,
Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents and 
records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with other Acts, Laws and Regulations
applicable specifically to the Company as per the list given in Annexure II

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period 
under review.
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The Company has paid its annual listing fees to the Bombay Stock Exchange for the Financial Year 2021-22.

For R. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES
Sd/-

PLACE: Mumbai (RAJNIKANT N.SHAH)
DATED: 30th May 2022 Proprietor

C. P. No.700
UDIN: F001629D000422962

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this 
report.
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To, ‘Annexure A’
The Members,
ZODIAC VENTURES LIMITED
404, Dev Plaza, 68, S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400058.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our Responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For R. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
COMPANYSECRETARIES

Sd/-
PLACE: Mumbai (RAJNIKANT N. SHAH)
DATED: 30th May 2022 Proprietor

C. P.No.700
UDIN: F001629D000422962
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Annexure-5 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

At Zodiac Ventures Limited, we believe that an effective Risk management process is the key to sustained operations 
thereby protecting Shareholder value, improving governance processes, achieving strategic objectives and being well 
prepared for adverse situations or unplanned circumstances, if they were to occur in the life cycle of the business 
activities.

This Policy has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 02nd March 2015
Zodiac Ventures Limited shall ensure implementation of effective Enterprise Risk Management by:
Putting in place Risk Management Frameworks and Processes.

Identifying risks and promoting a pro-active approach to treating such risks.

Allocating adequate resources to mitigate and manage risks and minimise their adverse impact onoutcomes.

Optimising risk situations to manage adverse exposure and bring them in line with acceptable Risk Appetite of the 
company.

Striving towards strengthening the Risk Management System through continuous learning and improvement.

Providing clear and strong basis for informed decision making at all levels of the organization on an ongoing basis, 
having duly evaluated like risks and their mitigation plan being controllable and within risk appetite.

Delineating Business Continuity Processes and Disaster Management Plans, for unforeseen exigencies and keeping the 
organisation constituents, prepared to appropriately and adequately deal with such circumstances, under eventuality of 
such happenings.

Ensure adherence to all relevant laws, rules & regulations

Communicating this policy to the required stakeholders through suitable means and periodically reviewing its relevance 
in a continuously changing business environment.

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and is committed to managing 
the risk in a proactive and effective manner.

Risk Management Frameworks and Processes.
Risk Mitigation Strategy
The Company believes that the Risk cannot be eliminated. However, it can be
Assigned to another party, who is willing to take risk, say by buying an insurance policy.

Reduced, by having good internal controls;

In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth 
plans of the Company are imperative.

The common risks are Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent 
and expansion of facilities.

Business risk includes financial risk, political risk, legal risk, etc. The management would identify and evaluate these risks 
to see which may have critical impact on the Company and which may not have significant impact to deserve further 
attention.

As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

Risk Management Framework:
Risk Assessment;

Risk Management;

Risk Monitoring
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RISK ASSESSMENT
Risk Assessment consists of a detailed study of threats and vulnerability and resultant exposure to various risks. The key 
risks are identified and plans for managing the same are laid out.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK MONITORING
In the management of Risk the probability of risk assumption is estimated with available data and information and 
appropriate risk treatments worked out in the following areas:
Economic Environment and Market conditions;

Political Environment;

Revenue Concentration;

Inflation and Cost Structure;

Technological Obsolescence;

Financial Reporting Risks;

Legal Risk;

Compliance with Local Laws;

Project Management;

Environmental Risk Management;

Human Resource Management.

Risk Mitigation Measures Adopted by the Company:
The Company has adopted the following measures to mitigate the risk arising out of Business Operation, Liquidity, Credit, 
Industry, Human Resource, Disaster, System, Legal, etc.
The Company functions under a well-defined organization structure.

Flow of information is well defined to avoid any conflict or communication gap between two or more Departments or 
Functions.

Second level positions are created in each Department to continue the work without any interruption in case of non-avail-
ability of functional heads.

Effective steps are being taken on a continuing basis taking various changing scenarios in the market.

Systems put in place for assessment of creditworthiness of contractors/sub-contractors/ dealers/vendors/customers.

Required materials are procured from different sources at competitive prices.

Alternative sources are developed for uninterrupted supply of required materials.

Company has proper recruitment policy for recruitment of personnel at various levels in the organization.

Proper appraisal system for revision of compensation on a periodical basis has been evolved and followed regularly.

Employees are trained at regular intervals to upgrade their skills.

Labour problems are obviated by negotiations and conciliation.

Employees are encouraged to make suggestions and discuss any problems with their Superiors.

The properties of the company are insured against natural risks, like fire, flood, earthquakes, etc. with periodical review of 
adequacy, rates and risks covered under professional advice.

Password protection is provided at different levels to ensure data integrity.
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The Company ensures “Data Security”, by having access control/restrictions.

The Legal department vets all legal and contractual documents with legal advice from Legal retainers for different 
branches of legislation.

Contracts are finalized as per the advice from legal professionals and Advocates.

Timely payment of insurance and full coverage of properties of the Company under insurance.

Internal control systems for proper control on the operations of the Company and to detect any frauds.

Role of Managing Director and Accountabilities
The Managing Director has responsibility for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing risks. The Managing 
Director is also responsible for identifying any material changes to the Company's risk profile and ensuring, with approval 
of the Board, the risk profile of the Company is updated to reflect any materialchange.
The Managing Director is required to report to the Board as to the effectiveness of the Company's management of its 
material business risks on a regular basis.

Continuous Improvement

The Company's risk management system is always evolving. It is an ongoing process and it is recognised that the level 
and extent of the risk management system will evolve commensurate with the development and growth of the Company's 
activities. The risk management system is a "living" system and the documentation that supports it will be regularly 
reviewed and updated in order to keep current with Company circumstances.

Disclaimer Clause

The Management cautions readers that the risks outlined above are not exhaustive and are for information purposes 
only. Management is not an expert in assessment of risk factors, risk mitigation measures and management's perception 
of risks. Readers are therefore requested to exercise their own judgment in assessing various risks associated with the 
Company
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Indian Economic Review1
After two years of the Covid-19 crisis, the world is by and large returning to a state of normalcy. Despite a highly
transmissible third wave of Covid-19, India is charting a course of recovery. After a slow start, vaccination in India picked 
up in FY22 covering more than 90% of the eligible population by May 2022. Administration of precautionary doses or 
booster doses to the eligible population has also commenced. Achieving this massive target could not have been 
possible without the support of policy makers, health workers and citizens. Economic uncertainties due to Covid-induced 
supply disruptions and geopolitical tensions have impacted India as well. 

Indian Real Estate Industry Overview2
India’s real estate sector in general and the housing segment in particular, has shown quick recovery from the Covid-in-
duced crisis. Globally, the housing boom has been accompanied by a sharp rise in housing prices, resulting in fears of a 
housing bubble. However in India, the housing sales surge has not been accompanied by a material rise in prices, leading 
to a more sustainable recovery. Healthy capital markets have enabled real estate companies to access equity capital, 
helping them de-leverage quickly. In the last few years, slowdown in the sector resulted in survival of only few players 
with better financial health and strong brand identity. Structural reforms like Real Estate Regulatory Authority (RERA) and 
Goods and Service Tax (GST) in recent years, have led to consolidation and formalisation of the sector.

Easing of Covid-related restrictions are leading to stabilisation of the commercial segment. Most of the offices have 
started moving towards ‘hybrid arrangements’, with a combination of work from office and work from home.

After a lull in 2020, the following year saw evenly matched sales and launches as buyers’ confidence returned. However, 
as seen during the first wave, Covid-led restrictions intensified the demand for quality housing which led to a sharp 
rebound as soon as mobility restrictions were eased.

Customer Experience 3
We keep our customers at the forefront in policy-making decisions including designing and changing needs and prefer-
ences of customers in evolving environment. This enables us to build trust, create happy experiences and provide them 
with the best-in-class products. By understanding our customers’ needs, we aim to make the customer’s home-buying 
experience a simple and joyous one, thereby enhancing brand advocacy.

Opportunities and challenges4
The management of your Company is confident of creating and exploiting the opportunities it is faced with, keeping in 
mind any unfavorable changes in the government policies and the regulatory environment that can adversely impact the 
performance of the sector. Retrospective policy changes and regulatory bottlenecks may impact profitability and affect 
the attractiveness of the sector and companies operating within the sector. Post the easing of the Covid-induced 
restrictions, your Company has turned its focus towards measured growth through the initiation of two new residential 
redevelopment projects at prime locations in Vile Parle (East), Mumbai, namely Anjaneshwar Co-operative Housing 
Society Ltd. and Guruchhaya Co-operative Housing Society Ltd. Going forward into the financial year 2022-23, your 
Company intends to focus on the redevelopment model with a view to gain a substantial foothold in the redevelopment 
sector. Your Company is also looking to diversify into new business avenues and has been granted approval from the 
Ministry of Food Processing Industries, Government of India for setting up Agro Processing Clusters, also known as Food 
Park, at Raigad, Maharashtra.

Internal Control Systems:5
The Company has an adequate Internal Control System commensurate with size and nature of its business to safeguard 
all assets and to ensure their efficient productivity. The Company has continued to keep focus on processes and controls. 
The Company has a suitable internal control system for the business processes, operations, financial reporting, compli-
ance with applicable laws and regulations. Wherever deemed necessary, internal control systems are also reassessed 
and corrective action is taken, if required.

Financial operational performance:6
Despite a repressed economic development, your Company performed reasonably well.



Impact of COVID-19 on the Company:7
Though most of Covid-induced restrictions were gradually lifted as the year went on, the impact of the crisis has been 
undeniably felt by the real estate sector as well as by the Company.  The company suspended operations in compliance 
with lockdown instructions issued by the Central and State governments. However, the Company resumed operations in a 
phased manner in line with subsequent guidelines of the government. The management is actively monitoring the 
long-term effects of this pandemic on its workforce and operations including construction and supplies and financial 
condition including liquidity, inventories, receivables, investments and other assets/liabilities. The Company has used the 
principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions in assessing its liquidity position and carrying 
value of its assets.

Cautionary Statement8
Statements in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the 
Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may constitute 'forward looking statements' within the 
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or implied.
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Independent Audit Report
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The Members,
Zodiac Ventures Limited.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Zodiac Ventures Limited (“the Company”), for the 
quarter and year ended March 31,2022  (“the statement”) , being submitted by company pursuant to the requirement of 
Regulation33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,2015 as amended.
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible 
effects of the matter described in the basis of qualified opinion, these Standalone Financial Result for the year ended 
March31,2022:
Are presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations; and

Give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian
Accountant Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.  (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the net loss and total comprehensive income and other financial information for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone 
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are applicable to the Company as it is a listed company.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 02 to the financial results that during the year, the Company has issued 29,95,000 Share 
warrants, convertible in Equity shares at an issue price of Rs. 25.06 per warrants (including premium of Rs. 24.06 per 
warrants to 12 allottees including promoters. The Company has received 25% of issue price i.e. Rs. 6.265 per Warrants 
(including premium of Rs. 6.015 per warrants amounting to Rs. 1,88,08,000/-

We draw your attention to Note 03 to the financial results, which states that the During the year, the Company has sold 
1,00,00,000 Shares of subsidiary company Zodiac Developers Private Limited held as Investments at Fair Market
Valuation of Rs. 1.55 per shares as per the Valuation Report prepared by the Registered Merchant Banker to the promoter 
Mr. Jimit Shah and thereby, the Company incurred a Loss on sale of Investment in subsidiary amounting to Rs. 95.00 
Lakhs. Due to sale of such investments, the Company's holding in subsidiary company reduced to 42.81% from 50.98% 
as a result it ceases to be a Holding Company, however, it holds the controlling Interest in the associate company.

Looking at the present pandemic situation and sluggishness in Real Estate Industry and ongoing Litigations, the
Investment in Associate Company having carrying value of Rs. 1,310 lakhs have been tested for Impairment. And 
Management has taken the valuation Report from Registered Valuer of Associate Company; Zodiac Developers Private 
Limited. As per the Valuation Report, the Fair Value of Investment comes to Rs. 1.55 per Share and has made the
Provision for Impairment in the Value of Investments of Rs. 4,97,80,000 in the balance value of investment and its 
consequent effect on Financials and accordingly, the Investment is valued at Rs.8,12,20,000/-.
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We draw your attention to Note 04 to the financial results which states that Zodiac Developers Pvt. Ltd (ZDPL), which was 
the subsidiary of the company last year and now having controlling interest in the associate company, is engaged in real 
estate business. There are several litigations involved in the Hanuman Nagar Project of the said associate Company. 
There is a dispute with the Joint Developer in the Project. During 2020-21, the arbitration award dated 15th October 2020 
has been received for the Hanuman Nagar Project. But the Associate Company has an order from the SRA which
contradicts the arbitration award and definitely has more weightage in relative terms. An application under Section 34 of 
the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 has been filed in the Bombay High Court and the Associate Company is
confident of winning the same. Accordingly, management of the Associate Company is of the opinion that the amount 
incurred on the project stands good and recoverable along with sizeable profits. The construction activity has again 
begun beyond the 8th habitable floor for which CC has been received. Accordingly, the Associate Company visualizes 
sales proceeds, recovery of balance payments on flats sold and also new sales to occur which will improve the Cash Flow

We draw your attention to Note 05 to the financial results which states that Zodiac Developers Pvt. Ltd (ZDPL), an 
Associate company, had advanced a sum of Rs. 8.75,00,000/- to Akshar Group in the F.Y. 2017-18. The Associate 
Company was informed by Akshar Group that they intend to forfeit the entire amount of Rs. 8.75,00,000/- citing breach of 
contract and default in our obligations to them. The dispute had arisen and there is no improvement in the situation. The 
Associate Company intends to pursue legal recourse to recover this amount and is confident that the same will be 
recovered but, the case is yet to be filed. The matter is vexed and the Associate Company is playing a balancing act to 
safeguard its interest.

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

This Statement is the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and has been approved by them for the 
issuance. The Standalone Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been compiled from the related 
audited standalone financial statements. This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
Financial Results year ended March 31, 2022 that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive 
Income and other financial information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the 
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the Listing Regulations.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Standalone Financial Results that give a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Results, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. Matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assur-
ance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reason-
able assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 
Board of Directors. 

Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of Directors in terms of the require-
ments specified under the Listing Regulations.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of account-
ing and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial 
Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Standalone Financial Results of the Company to express an 
opinion on the Standalone Financial results.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, make it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the financial statements.
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Other Matters

The Statement includes the results for the Quarter ended March 31, 2022 being the balancing figure between the audited 
figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current 
financial year which were subject to limited review. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

For NAVIN NISHAR & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REGN. NO-116503W
    
    
  

Sd/-
CA. NAVIN K. NISHAR

PROPRIETOR
M. No. 101443

UDIN. No.: 22101443AKDQCT2958

Place : Mumbai
Date: 02nd June, 2022
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Particulars

ASSETS

1) Non-Current Assets

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Note No. As at 
31/03/2022

As at 
31/03/2021

(ii) Intangible Assets
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other Financial Assets
(c) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 
(d) Other Non Current Assets

2.01  2,71,767  86,581 

2.02  8,12,20,000  15,60,00,000 

2.03  29,92,545  24,15,345

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Total Non Current Assets  8,44,84,312  15,85,01,926 
(2) Current Assets

(b) Financial Assets
Investments
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Others Financial assets
(c) Other Current Assets

2.04  11,16,346 

 - -

 - -

 -

2.05   37,80,000 -

2.07

2.06
2.06

   2,45,143    2,52,291 
  64,972  27,707 

(a) Inventories

Total Current Assets
 25,686   26,900 

  52,32,147   3,06,898 
  8,97,16,458    15,88,08,824 Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity

(b) Other Equity
(c) Money received against Share Warrants
Total Equity
LIABILITIES
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
Total Non-current Liabilities
(3) Current Liabilities

2.08
2.09

  3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000 
   1,93,58,508    7,46,68,694 

1,15,78,219 4,56,09,451 

   7,54,56,508     11,19,58,694 
2.10   1,88,08,000 

-  -
-  -

(a) Equity Share Capital

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Micro and Small Enterprise
Other than Micro and Small Enterprise
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity & Liabilities

2.12
2.11

 - -

 -

2.13  4,42,967  2,78,577 
2.14

9,41,662  7,91,498 

   12,97,102  1,70,604 

(ii) Trade Payables

 1,42,59,950    4,68,50,130 
8,97,16,458 15,88,08,824 

Significant Accounting Policies And Notes On Accounts 1 & 2

As per our attached report of even date 
For Navin Nishar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
CA. Navin K. Nishar
Proprietor
Membership No. : 101443
Firm Reg. No.: 116503W
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 02.06.2022

 For Zodiac Ventures  Limited 

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Jimit R. Shah Sunita J. Shah
(Managing Director) (Director)
(DIN-01580796) (DIN-03099290)

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Vipul Khona Rustom Aspi Deboo
(CFO) (Company Secretary)
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ZODIAC VENTURES LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2022

CIN:- L45209MH1981PLC023923

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue from Operations

Total Income

Note No. As at 
31/03/2022

As at 
31/03/2021

EXPENDITURE
Changes in inventories of Work in process
Employee Benefit Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation & Amortisation expenses
Other Expenses

2.15
2.16

  79,50,000  20,00,000 

   79,77,624  20,00,000 
  27,624  -

2.17
2.18
2.19

11,16,346 
 6,92,262 

 24,73,793 

 19,15,134 

  1,86,134 
 12,57,934 

  7,52,686 

  1,35,07,809    22,00,003 
55,30,185 2,00,003 

 -

2.01
2.20
2.21

  42,967  3,249 

Other Income

Loss on Sale of Investment in Subsidiary  95,00,000 
Total Expenses

Tax Expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax
Tax in Respect of Earlier Years
Total Tax expenses
Others Financial assets
Profit/(Loss) for the Year

- -

-   -

-   -

-  -

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
55,30,185 2,00,003 

4,97,80,000    -A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or Loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (Net of Tax)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year
Earnings/(Loss) Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 1 each
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted
Total Non-current Liabilities
(3) Current Liabilities

-   -
-   -

4,97,80,000   -
5,53,10,185 2,00,003 

1,15,78,219 4,56,09,451 

 (1.48)      (0.01)2.21
2.21

-  -
 (1.48)  (0.01)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Micro and Small Enterprise
Other than Micro and Small Enterprise
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity & Liabilities

 - -

 4,42,967  2,78,577 
9,41,662  7,91,498 

   12,97,102  1,70,604 

(ii) Trade Payables

 1,42,59,950    4,68,50,130 
8,97,16,458 15,88,08,824 

Significant Accounting Policies And Notes On Accounts 1 & 2

As per our report attached
For Navin Nishar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
CA. Navin K. Nishar
Proprietor
Membership No. : 101443
Firm Reg. No.: 116503W
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 02.06.2022

 For Zodiac Ventures  Limited 

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Jimit R. Shah Sunita J. Shah
(Managing Director) (Director)
(DIN-01580796) (DIN-03099290)

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Vipul Khona Rustom Aspi Deboo
(CFO) (Company Secretary)



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022

EQUITY SHARE CAPITALa

Particulars

As at 1st April, 2020

Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21

Changes in equity share capital during 2021-22

Note Amount(Rs.)

As at 31st March, 2022

2.08   3,72,90,000 

  3,72,90,000 

  3,72,90,000 
 -

 -
As at 31st March, 2021

OTHER EQUITYb

Particulars of 
Remuneration

As at 1 April, 2020

Other Equity

Profit/(loss) for the Year
Dividend on Equity Shares

Reserve and Surplus

Securities Premium General Reserve Retained Earnings

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Total other 
Equity

Tax on Dividend on Equity Shares
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2021

6,21,98,310
-
-
-
-

6,21,98,310
Profit/(loss) for the Year
Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on Dividend on Equity Shares
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2021

-
-
-
-

6,21,98,310

2,52,462 
-
-
-
-

2,52,462 
-
-
-
-

2,52,462 

1,24,17,924 
(2,00,003)

-
-
-

1,22,17,922 
(55,30,185)

-
-
-

66,87,736 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,97,80,000 
4,97,80,000 

7,48,68,696 
(2,00,003)

-
-
-

7,46,68,694 
(55,30,185)

-
-

(4,97,80,000)
1,93,58,508 

As per our report attached
For Navin Nishar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
CA. Navin K. Nishar
Proprietor
Membership No. : 101443
Firm Reg. No.: 116503W
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 02.06.2022

 For Zodiac Ventures  Limited 

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Jimit R. Shah Sunita J. Shah
(Managing Director) (Director)
(DIN-01580796) (DIN-03099290)

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Vipul Khona Rustom Aspi Deboo
(CFO) (Company Secretary)
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ZODIAC VENTURES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2022

CIN:- L45209MH1981PLC023923

Particulars

A) Cash flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Add : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

For The year ended 
31/03/2022

Add : Loss on Sale of Shares
Less : Interest Received
Operating Cash Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjusted for:
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables

 42,967 
 95,00,000 

24,73,793
 55,30,185 

22,200 

 14,48,200
 37,78,786

 30,17,442

 64,64,374 

Add : Finance Costs

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  11,16,346
Cash Generated from Operations

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in the course of Operating Activities
B) Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest Received
Add: Sale of Investement (Shares of Zodiac Developer Pvt. Ltd)
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) in the course of Investing Activities

 5,77,200 
24,40,242

 2,28,153 

1,55,00,000 
22,200 

Direct Taxes Paid

C) Cash flow from Financing Activities:
 1,52,94,047 

3,40,31,232 

24,73,793 

-

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short-Term Borrowings (Net)

Finance Costs

Dividends paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in the course of Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Opening balance of Cash and Cash equivalents
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

   1,88,08,000 
1,76,97,025 

 37,265 

  64,972 
   27,707 

 3,249 
12,57,934 
 2,00,003

-

7,09,109 
 18,260 

 17,52,029 

10,61,180 

 -

 1,50,000 
16,02,029 

 89,830

 89,830

-

2,50,518

12,57,934

-

15,08,452
 3747

  27,707
   23,959

Proceeds From Issue of Shares Warrant

For Navin Nishar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
CA. Navin K. Nishar
Proprietor
Membership No. : 101443
Firm Reg. No.: 116503W
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 02.06.2022

 For Zodiac Ventures  Limited 

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Jimit R. Shah Sunita J. Shah
(Managing Director) (Director)
(DIN-01580796) (DIN-03099290)

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Vipul Khona Rustom Aspi Deboo
(CFO) (Company Secretary)

For The year ended 
31/03/2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 
read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the 
Act.    
 
Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results 
are known/ materialised.    

Revenue Recognition
 
Revenue from sale of services is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of 
promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in 
exchange for those services.     
 
The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised services to 
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transac-
tion prices for the time value of money.    
 
Revenue for Real Estate project
  
During the year under review, the Company has started two Residential Real Estate projects Viz. Anjaneshwar CHS and 
Guruchhaya CHS Projects for Redevelopment of the Society. All the direct expenses pertaining to particular project has 
been capitalised to the particular projects and all the indirect general expenses has been allocated to the existing running 
projects based on the direct expenditure incurred for the particular projects during the year.  
   
In accordance with the principles of Ind AS-115, revenue in respect of real estate project is recognised on satisfaction of 
performance obligation at a point in time by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer and the 
customer obtains control of that asset. 

The satisfaction of performance obligation and the control thereof is transferred from the company to the buyer upon 
possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of possession (“deemed date of possession”), whichever is earlier, subject 
to certainty of realization.

Property, Plant and Equipment
   
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are 
met and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.  
   
Depreciation
    
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment on the Straight Line Method over the useful life in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 
read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the 
Act.    
 
Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results 
are known/ materialised.    

Revenue Recognition
 
Revenue from sale of services is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of 
promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in 
exchange for those services.     
 
The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised services to 
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transac-
tion prices for the time value of money.    
 
Revenue for Real Estate project
  
During the year under review, the Company has started two Residential Real Estate projects Viz. Anjaneshwar CHS and 
Guruchhaya CHS Projects for Redevelopment of the Society. All the direct expenses pertaining to particular project has 
been capitalised to the particular projects and all the indirect general expenses has been allocated to the existing running 
projects based on the direct expenditure incurred for the particular projects during the year.  
   
In accordance with the principles of Ind AS-115, revenue in respect of real estate project is recognised on satisfaction of 
performance obligation at a point in time by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer and the 
customer obtains control of that asset. 

The satisfaction of performance obligation and the control thereof is transferred from the company to the buyer upon 
possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of possession (“deemed date of possession”), whichever is earlier, subject 
to certainty of realization.

Property, Plant and Equipment
   
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are 
met and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.  
   
Depreciation
    
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment on the Straight Line Method over the useful life in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged

Financial Instruments    

Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.    

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement    

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 
recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.  

Subsequent Measurement    

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
 
Investment in subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
 
The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at Fair Market Value. During 
the year, the Company has sold 1,00,00,000 Shares of subsidiary company Zodiac Developers Private Limited held as 
Investments at Fair Market Valuation of Rs. 1.55 per shares done by the Registered Merchant Banker to the promoter and 
thereby incurred Loss on sale of Investment in subsidiarry amounting to Rs. 95.00 Lakhs. Due to sale of such
investments, the Company's holding in subsidiary company reduced to 42.81% from 50.98% as a result it ceases to be a 
Holding Company, however, it holds the controlling Interest in subsidiary company Zodiac Developers Private Limited.   

As per the Fair Market Valuations, the Investment in subsidiaries has been tested for an impairment and thereby the 
Company has made an impairment of Investment in subsidiaries to the extent of Rs. 4,97,80,000/- in the balance
Investment of 5,24,00,000 Shares Investment in subsidiariy Company hold by the Company.

Other Equity Investments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. There are two measurement categories into 
which the Company classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL: Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the 
Company irrevocable elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income for equity instruments which are not held for trading.
 
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI: On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This 
election is not permitted if equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve for ‘equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal 
of the investments.
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Financial Instruments    

Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.    

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement    

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 
recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.  

Subsequent Measurement    

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
 
Investment in subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
 
The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at Fair Market Value. During 
the year, the Company has sold 1,00,00,000 Shares of subsidiary company Zodiac Developers Private Limited held as 
Investments at Fair Market Valuation of Rs. 1.55 per shares done by the Registered Merchant Banker to the promoter and 
thereby incurred Loss on sale of Investment in subsidiarry amounting to Rs. 95.00 Lakhs. Due to sale of such
investments, the Company's holding in subsidiary company reduced to 42.81% from 50.98% as a result it ceases to be a 
Holding Company, however, it holds the controlling Interest in subsidiary company Zodiac Developers Private Limited.   

As per the Fair Market Valuations, the Investment in subsidiaries has been tested for an impairment and thereby the 
Company has made an impairment of Investment in subsidiaries to the extent of Rs. 4,97,80,000/- in the balance
Investment of 5,24,00,000 Shares Investment in subsidiariy Company hold by the Company.

Other Equity Investments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. There are two measurement categories into 
which the Company classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL: Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the 
Company irrevocable elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income for equity instruments which are not held for trading.
 
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI: On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This 
election is not permitted if equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve for ‘equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal 
of the investments.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of 
financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). As per the Fair Market
Valuations, the Investment in subsidiaries has been tested for an impairment and thereby the Company has made an 
impairment of Investment in subsidiaries to the extent of Rs. 4,97,80,000/- in the balance Investment of 5,24,00,000 
Shares Investment in subsidiariy Company hold by the Company.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the 
financial instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the 
portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the 
forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in 
credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

De-recognition of financial instruments
   
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire 
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a 
part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial Liabilities    
 
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cost, Fee of 
recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.  

Subsequent Measurement

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate 
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.   

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the 
cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement in the period in which they are 
incurred.

Employee Benefits

The Statutory enactments relating to payment of Provident Fund, ESIC and Gratuity to employees are not applicable to 
the company. The company does not have any scheme for retirement benefits for its employee and as such no provision 
towards retirement benefits to employees is considered necessary. Short term employee benefits in the form of leave 
encashment and Bonus is provided on accrual basis.

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is 
accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will 
be realised in future.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of 
financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). As per the Fair Market
Valuations, the Investment in subsidiaries has been tested for an impairment and thereby the Company has made an 
impairment of Investment in subsidiaries to the extent of Rs. 4,97,80,000/- in the balance Investment of 5,24,00,000 
Shares Investment in subsidiariy Company hold by the Company.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the 
financial instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the 
portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the 
forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in 
credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

De-recognition of financial instruments
   
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire 
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a 
part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial Liabilities    
 
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cost, Fee of 
recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.  

Subsequent Measurement

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate 
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.   

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the 
cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement in the period in which they are 
incurred.

Employee Benefits

The Statutory enactments relating to payment of Provident Fund, ESIC and Gratuity to employees are not applicable to 
the company. The company does not have any scheme for retirement benefits for its employee and as such no provision 
towards retirement benefits to employees is considered necessary. Short term employee benefits in the form of leave 
encashment and Bonus is provided on accrual basis.

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is 
accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will 
be realised in future.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the 
effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot 
be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, however they are disclosed where the inflow of 
economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a 
contingent asset and is recognised as an asset.

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the end of the reporting period but remaining 
undistributed at the end of the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately authorised and is no longer at the 
discretion of the entity.

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Property, Plant and Equipment

v1.10

1.11

1.12

2.01

Particulars

Original Cost

As At April 1, 2020

Deductions/  Adjustment

 Mobile Instrument 

As At March 31, 2021
Additions
Deductions/  Adjustment
As At March 31, 2022
Depreciation
As At April 1, 2020

 -

-

 1,79,000 

Additions

For the Period -

-
Deductions/  Adjustment

For the Period
Deductions/  Adjustment
As At March 31, 2022
Net Book Value
As At March 31, 2021
As At March 31, 2022

 19,130 

19,130 

-

As At March 31, 2021

 1,59,870 

 -
89,830

89,830
 49,153 

 1,79,000  1,38,983 
-

3249

3249
 23,837 

  27,086 

 1,11,897 

-

-

 Office Equipment 

 86,581 
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Particulars

Investments measured at Cost

In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company

6,24,00,000 (P.Y. 6,24,00,000) Equity Shares of 
Zodiac Developers Private Limited of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up.

Less: Sale of 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Zodiac Developers Private Limited of Rs. 1/- Each
Fully paid @ Rs. 1.55 per share to Promoters As per Valuation Report of Registered Valuer)

Less: Loss on Sale of Investments

Unquoted, fully paid up

Total

15,60,00,000 

-95,00,000 
Less: Provision of  Impairment in the Value of Investments as per the FMV of
Rs. 1.55 per share (5,24,00000 X Rs. 0.95)

-4,97,80,000 

 8,12,20,000 

15,60,00,000 

 -1,55,00,000 

  31.03.2022 

Investmentsv2.02

Particulars

Income Tax Refund (Net of Tax)
Total   29,92,545 

  29,92,545 

 31.03.2022 

Non-Current Tax Assetsv2.03

Particulars

Work in Progess:-  
(As certified by management)

WIP-Anjaneshwar Project  
WIP Guruchhaya Project  1,92,188 
Total  11,16,346 

9,24,158 

  31.03.2022 

INVENTORIES (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)v2.04

Total

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  
Others   37,80,000 
Total   37,80,000 

  -

 31.03.2022 

Trade Reveivablesv2.05

For the Year ending 31st March,2022

Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables Considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables Considered Doubtful
Total

 37,80,000 
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
- - - -

-
-
-

6 months 6 months - 1 yr 1-2yr 2-3 yrs More than 3 yrs

For the Year ending 31st March,2021

Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables Considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables Considered Doubtful
Total

 -
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
- - - -

-
-
-

6 months 6 months - 1 yr 1-2yr 2-3 yrs More than 3 yrs
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Particulars

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks

Cash-On- Hand 

52,226.00

(ii) Other Bank Balances
Unclaimed Dividend Account
Total

64,972.08 
 2,45,143 
 2,45,143 
  3,10,115 

12,746.08 

  31.03.2022 

Cash And Bank Balancesv2.06

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered Good
GST Credit receivable  25,686 
Total 25,686

 31.03.2022

Other Current Assets  v2.07

Particulars

Authorised Share Capital
20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1  each  20,00,00,000 
20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1  each  20,00,00,000 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
3,72,90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each, Fully Paid up   3,72,90,000 
Total  3,72,90,000 

 31.03.2022

Equity Share Capitalv2.08

Particulars

At the beginning of the Period
Add:- Issued During the Period  -
Outstanding at the end of the period

  31.03.2022

 -

  31.03.2022

  -
  3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000 

  3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000 

  31.03.2022

  Numbers  Rupees  Numbers

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:- v2.08

Particulars

At the beginning of the Period
Add:- Issued During the Period
Outstanding at the end of the period

  31.03.2022

 -

  31.03.2022

  -
  3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000 

  3,72,90,000   3,72,90,000 

  31.03.2022

  Numbers  Rupees  Numbers

Details of shareholder of Promoters & promoter Group in the Company:-
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2022

v2.08

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1/-. Each holder of 
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.   

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.   
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The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1/-. Each holder of 
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.   

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.   

Promoter Name

Ramesh Shah
Pushpa Shah

No. of shares % of total 
shares of

the Company

% Change during 
the year

 

Jimit Shah
Yesha Shah
Sunita Shah

1,25,92,320 
52,50,000 
27,62,320 
16,35,000 
17,50,000 

Total

33.77
14.08
7.41
4.38
4.69
64.33

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Promoter Name

Ramesh Shah
Pushpa Shah

No. of shares % of total 
shares of

the Company

% Change during 
the year

 

Jimit Shah
Yesha Shah
Sunita Shah

1,25,92,320 
52,50,000 
27,62,320 
16,35,000 
17,50,000 

Total

33.77
14.08
7.41
4.38
4.69
64.33

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Details of shareholder of Promoters & promoter Group in the Company:-
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2022

v2.08

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2021

Particulars

a) Securities Premium
Balance as per last Financial Statements

Add\Less : Adjustments 

6,21,98,310.00 

Closing Balance
b) General Reserve
Balance as per last Financial Statements

-
6,21,98,310.00 

2,52,462.00 
Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Statement
Closing Balance

 -

c) Retained Earnings
Balance as per last Financial Statements 1,22,17,921.68 

-55,30,185.46 Add : Profit /(Loss) for the year
Less : Dividend on Equity Shares
Less : Tax on Dividend on Equity Shares
Less: Provision of Impairment of Loss in Investments as per FV of Equity Shares of Subsidiary Co.

-
-

-4,97,80,000.00 
Closing Balance
Total

-4,30,92,263.78 
1,93,58,508.22 

  31.03.2022 

Other Equityv2.09

Nature & purpose of other equity and reserves :
Securities Premium
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve
The Company created a General Reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act wherein certain 
percentage of profits were required to be transferred to General Reserve before declaring dividends. As per Companies 
Act 2013, the requirement to transfer profits to General Reserve is not mandatory. General Reserve is a free reserve 
available to the Company.

Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represent accumulated earnings transferred to reserves over the years. It also accounts for Loss on 
Sale of Investments subsidiary Company - Zodiac Developer Pvt. Ltd. to Jimit Ramesh Shah (Promoter)and also 
accounts for provision for impairment of investment in subsidiary Company - Zodiac Developer Pvt. Ltd

a

b

c
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Particulars

During the year, the Company has Issued 29,95,000 (P.Y. NIL) share Warrants Convertible in Equity Shares of FV Rs. 1/- at a 
premium of Rs. 24.06 per warrants. Above warrants are Partly Paid up of Face value of Rs. 0.25 &  Premium of Rs. 6.015 per 
warrants)

Total 1,88,08,000 

 1,88,08,000 

  31.03.2022 

Share Warrantv2.10

During the year, the  Company has issued 29,95,000 Share warrants, convertible in Equity shares at an issue price of
Rs. 25.06 per warrants (including premium of Rs. 24.06 per warrants to 12 allottees including promoters. The Company 
has received 25% of issue price i.e. Rs. 6.265 per Warrants (including premium of Rs. 6.015 per warrants amounting to 
Rs. 1,88,08,000/-

Particulars

Unsecured
Loans Repayable on Demand

10,00,000 
From Related Parties 1,05,78,219 
From Other Parties
Total 1,15,78,219 

 31.03.2022

Burrowingsv2.11

Particulars

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Others

 -
 9,41,662 

Total  9,41,662 

 31.03.2022

Trade Payables v2.12

For the Year ending 31st March,2022

Particulars

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Total

0
 6,89,897 

0
0
0

 83,700 
0
0
0

 46,205 
0
0
0

 1,21,860 
0
0
0

-
0 0 0 0

0
0
0

6 months 6 months - 1 yr 1-2yr 2-3 yrs More than 3 yrs

For the Year ending 31st March,2021

Particulars

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Total

0
 2,01,948 

0
0
0

 4,67,690 
0
0
0

 1,21,860 
0
0
0

-
0
0
0

-
0 0 0 0

0
0
0

6 months 6 months - 1 yr 1-2yr 2-3 yrs More than 3 yrs

The Company has not received any intimation from any of its suppliers regarding their Status as Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprise under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006". 
Hence Disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the end of the year along with interest paid/payable as 
required under the said act is not applicable in the case of the Company.
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Particulars

Withholding and Other Taxes Payable 12,97,102 
Total 12,97,102 

 31.03.2022

Other Current Liabilities v2.14

Particulars

Salary & Bonus 6,92,262 
Total 6,92,262 

 31.03.2022

Employee Benefit Expensev2.18

Particulars

Sale of Services
Architect and Liaisoning Fees  79,50,000 
Total  79,50,000 

 31.03.2022

Revenue From Operations    v2.15

Particulars

Discount Received
Interest on IT Refund 22,200.00 

5,424.00 

Total 27,624.00 

 31.03.2022

Other Income   v2.16

Particulars

Work In Progress at Commencement 
Work In Progress at Close 11,16,346 

-

Total (A-B) 11,16,346

 31.03.2022

Changes In Inventories Of Work in Processv2.17

Particulars

Interest Expense
Bank Charges  5,813 

 24,67,980 

Total  24,73,793 

 31.03.2022

Financial Costv2.19

Particulars

Unpaid dividend
Salary Payable

4,42,967 
33,096 

2,18,071 

Reimbursement of Expenses Payable to Rustom (Net Banking)
1,91,800 

Total

 31.03.2022

Other Financial Liabilitiesv2.11 v2.13



Revenue From Operations    

Particulars

Sales Promotion
Legal & Professional Fees

4,96,163 
92,633 

2,40,629 

Advertisement Expenses
5,51,787 

Listing, Depository & Other Related Charges

Auditor's Remuneration:-
As Auditors

1,39,702  
33,096 For Other Services
1,00,000 

Interest on Late Payment of Statutory Dues

2,79,824 
14,396 Printing and Stationery

Miscellaneous Expenses
19,15,134 Total

 31.03.2022

Other Expensesv2.11 v2.20

Particulars

Loss on Sale of Investment of Shares in Subsidiary Company  95,00,000 
Total  95,00,000 

 31.03.2022

Loss on Sale of Investment in Subsidiaryv2.21

Particulars

Profit / (Loss) after Tax
Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the year. (Face Value Rs. 1 per share)  3,72,90,000 

5,53,10,185

Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per share  (1.48)

 31.03.2022

Earning Per Share   v2.22

2.22

Company does not have any potential dilutive equity shares, hence dilutive earning per share is same as earning per share.

Fair Values

Particulars

Financial Assets
Investments
Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

8,12,20,000
8,12,20,000

-
1,15,78,219

15,60,00,000
15,60,00,000

-
4,56,09,451

 As at March 
31,2022 

 Carrying Values  Fair Values

 As at March 
31,2021

 As at March 
31,2022 

 As at March 
31,2021

Borrowings 1,15,78,219 4,56,09,451

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, 
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade 
payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of 
these instruments.

8,12,20,000
8,12,20,000

1,15,78,219
1,15,78,219

15,60,00,000
15,60,00,000

4,56,09,451
4,56,09,451
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2.222.23

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit 
risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk 
management framework. The Company has constituted a core Management Committee, which is responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are 
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and 
controls, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key 
risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee of the Company.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.The 
Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due 
without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended 31st 
March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the financial 
liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on 
an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short term surplus cash generated, over and above the amount 
required for working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents 
(to the extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing term deposits and other highly marketable debt 
investments with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.  

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. This risk exist mainly on account of borrowings of the Company. However, all these 
borrowings are at fixed interest rate and hence the exposure to change in interest rate is insignificant.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. The Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as at the respective reporting 
dates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) 
and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and 
control relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an 
individual basis for major trade receivables.

Other Financial Assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company in accordance with the 
Company’s policy.

Financial Risk Management

6

i

ii

i

ii

A

B

C
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Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same 
geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be 
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of 
the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to 
focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed 
accordingly.

  Segment Reporting    
 
The company operates in a single line of business i. e. Real Estate Project Advisory and Development and construction of 
Real Estate Projects and also in a single geographic environment within India, Hence there is no reportable segment 
information with respect to provision of Ind As 108 “Segment Reporting” 

C

2.222.24

Particulars

Disputed demand in respect of Income-tax   24,85,909 

 31.03.2021

 25,04,472 

 31.03.2022

Contingent liabilities and commitmentsv2.25

2.26

Income Tax Demand of Rs. 19,29,638/- for assessment year 2016-17. 
The matter is pending before the Commissioner Of Income Tax (Appeals).   
Income Tax Demand of Rs. 5,56,271/- for assessment year 2017-18. 
The matter is pending before the Commissioner Of Income Tax (Appeals).   
ncome Tax Demand of Rs. 18,563/- for assessment year 2018-19. 
The matter is pending before the Commissioner Of Income Tax (Appeals).   
GST Payable for the FY 2021-22 Rs. 8,51,826/-   
TDS Payable for the FY 2021-22 Rs. 4,11,390/-  

Related Party Disclosures

List of Related Parties where control exists and Related Parties with whom transactions have taken 
place and Relationships:- 

Subsidiary Company :-
Zodiac Developers Private Limited (As on 31/03/2022, it is no more a subsidiary)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) :-

Ramesh V. Shah  (Chairman)

Jimit Ramesh Shah  (Managing Director)

Vipul Khona  (Chief Financial Officer)

Rustom Aspi Deboo  (Company Secretary)    
  

A

i

ii
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Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same 
geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be 
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of 
the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to 
focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed 
accordingly.

  Segment Reporting    
 
The company operates in a single line of business i. e. Real Estate Project Advisory and Development and construction of 
Real Estate Projects and also in a single geographic environment within India, Hence there is no reportable segment 
information with respect to provision of Ind As 108 “Segment Reporting” 

Income Tax Demand of Rs. 19,29,638/- for assessment year 2016-17. 
The matter is pending before the Commissioner Of Income Tax (Appeals).   
Income Tax Demand of Rs. 5,56,271/- for assessment year 2017-18. 
The matter is pending before the Commissioner Of Income Tax (Appeals).   
ncome Tax Demand of Rs. 18,563/- for assessment year 2018-19. 
The matter is pending before the Commissioner Of Income Tax (Appeals).   
GST Payable for the FY 2021-22 Rs. 8,51,826/-   
TDS Payable for the FY 2021-22 Rs. 4,11,390/-  

Related Party Disclosures

List of Related Parties where control exists and Related Parties with whom transactions have taken 
place and Relationships:- 

Subsidiary Company :-
Zodiac Developers Private Limited (As on 31/03/2022, it is no more a subsidiary)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) :-

Ramesh V. Shah  (Chairman)

Jimit Ramesh Shah  (Managing Director)

Vipul Khona  (Chief Financial Officer)

Rustom Aspi Deboo  (Company Secretary)    
  

Transaction with Related Parties:-B

Nature of Transaction (Excluding Reimbursements)

Short Term Borrowings Taken

 31.03.2021

Ramesh V. Shah 7,23,909 -
Jimit Ramesh Shah 2,34,10,573 62,22,000 

2,41,34,482 62,22,000 

Repayment of Short Term Borrowings Taken
Ramesh V. Shah -33,00,000 
Jimit Ramesh Shah 32,35,000 3,54,60,000 

32,35,000 3,87,60,000 

Interest Paid
Ramesh V. Shah 6,68,011 7,08,590 
Jimit Ramesh Shah 5,87,106 17,59,390 

12,55,117 24,67,980 

Salary and other Employee Benefits
Rustom Aspi Deboo (Salary)  1,86,134   2,49,900 

 1,86,134   2,49,900 

Expenses incurred on behalf of Company
Rustom Aspi Deboo (Statutory Exp.. Paid on behalf of Company) -54,297 
Rustom Aspi Deboo (Reimbursement of Exp.. Paid on behalf of Company) - -21,201 

- 33,096  

Balances Outstanding as at year end
Short Term Borrowings Taken
Ramesh V. Shah 1,18,39,416 91,77,147 
Jimit Ramesh Shah 2,90,55,621 14,01,072 

4,08,95,037 1,05,78,219 

Reimbursement of Expenses Payable to Rustom (Net Banking)
Rustom Aspi Deboo (Reimbursement of Exp.Paid on behalf of Company)  -  33,096 

 -  33,096 

 31.03.2022

For Navin Nishar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
CA. Navin K. Nishar
Proprietor
Membership No. : 101443
Firm Reg. No.: 116503W
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 02.06.2022

 For Zodiac Ventures  Limited 

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Jimit R. Shah Ramesh V. Shah
(Managing Director) (Chairman)
(DIN-01580796) (DIN-01580767)

Sd/-                                                               Sd/-
Vipul Khona Rustom Aspi Deboo
(CFO) (Company Secretary)
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Independent Audit Report
We have audited the accompanying statement of Consolidated Financial Results of Zodiac Venture Limited 
("An Associate Company having Controlling Interest, Previously, Holding Company") and its associate Company,
previously, Subsidiary (An Associate Company having controlling Interest, previously, holding company and its Associate 
Company, previously, subsidiary together referred to as "Group") for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2022 
("the statement"), being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of audit report of subsidiary on the separate financial result of subsidiary, these statements:
Includes the result of the entity Zodiac Developers Private Limited (An Associate Company, Previously, subsidiary) and

Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the listing regulation in this regards; and

Give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the net loss and total comprehensive income and other financial information for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAS") specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results" section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Results under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are applicable to the Company as it is a listed company.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 02 to the financial results that during the year, the Company has issued 29,95,000 Share 
warrants, convertible in Equity shares at an issue price of Rs. 25.06 per warrants (including premium of Rs. 24.06 per 
warrants to 12 allottees including promoters. The Company has received 25% of issue price i.e. Rs. 6.265 per Warrants 
(including premium of Rs. 6.015 per warrants amounting to Rs. 1,88,08,000/-.

We draw your attention to Note 03 to the financial results, which states that the During the year, the Company has sold 
1,00,00,000 Shares of subsidiary company Zodiac Developers Private Limited held as Investments at Fair Market
Valuation of Rs. 1.55 per shares as per the Valuation Report prepared by the Registered Merchant Banker to the promoter 
Mr. Jimit Shah and thereby, the Company incurred a Loss on sale of Investment in subsidiary amounting to Rs. 95.00 
Lakhs. Due to sale of such investments, the Company's holding in subsidiary company reduced to 42.81% from 50.98% 
as a result it ceases to be a Holding Company, however, it holds the controlling Interest in the associate company. 
Further, due to reduction in holding in subsidiary Company, the Company has Write Off of Share of Accumulated
Consolidated Profit of Subsidiary due to sale of Share in Subsidiary (Post Acquisition) amounting to Rs. 15,99,505/-

Looking at the present pandemic situation and sluggishness in Real Estate Industry and ongoing Litigations, the Goodwill 
having carrying value of Rs 706.58/- lakhs should have been tested for Impairment. And therefore, the Management has 
taken the valuation Report from Registered Valuer of Associate Company; Zodiac Developers Private Limited. As per the 
Valuation Report, the Fair Value of Investment comes to Rs. 1.55 per Share and has made the Provision for Impairment in 
the Value of Investments of Rs. 4,97,80,000 in addition to the impairment due to Loss on sale of investments to the 
Promoter Mr. Jimit Shah in the balance value of investment and its consequent effect on Financials and accordingly, the 
Goodwill is valued at Rs.95,54,732/-.

a

b

c
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We draw your attention to Note 04 to the financial results which states that Zodiac Developers Pvt. Ltd (ZDPL), which was 
the subsidiary of the company last year and now having controlling interest in the associate company, is engaged in real 
estate business. There are several litigations involved in the Hanuman Nagar Project of the said associate Company. 
There is a dispute with the Joint Developer in the Project. During 2020-21, the arbitration award dated 15th October 2020 
has been received for the Hanuman Nagar Project. But the Associate Company has an order from the SRA which
contradicts the arbitration award and definitely has more weightage in relative terms. An application under Section 34 of 
the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 has been filed in the Bombay High Court and the Associate Company is
confident of winning the same. Accordingly, management of the Associate Company is of the opinion that the amount 
incurred on the project stands good and recoverable along with sizeable profits. The construction activity has again 
begun beyond the 8th habitable floor for which CC has been received. Accordingly, the Associate Company visualizes 
sales proceeds, recovery of balance payments on flats sold and also new sales to occur which will improve the Cash Flow

We draw your attention to Note 05 to the financial results which states that Zodiac Developers Pvt. Ltd (ZDPL), an 
Associate company, had advanced a sum of Rs. 8.75,00,000/- to Akshar Group in the F.Y. 2017-18. The Associate 
Company was informed by Akshar Group that they intend to forfeit the entire amount of Rs. 8.75,00,000/- citing breach of 
contract and default in our obligations to them. The dispute had arisen and there is no improvement in the situation. The 
Associate Company intends to pursue legal recourse to recover this amount and is confident that the same will be 
recovered but, the case is yet to be filed. The matter is vexed and the Associate Company is playing a balancing act to 
safeguard its interest.

Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

This Statement is the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and has been approved by them for the 
issuance. The consolidated Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been compiled from the related 
audited consolidated financial statements. This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial Results year ended March 31, 2022 that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other 
comprehensive Income and other financial information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles 
laid down in the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with the Listing 
Regulations.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Results that give a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Consolidated Financial Results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. Matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company.
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Results for the year ended 
March 31, 2022 as a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Consolidated Financial Results.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Results, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 
Board of Directors

Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of Directors in terms of the require-
ments specified under the Listing Regulations.  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Results, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Consolidated Financial Results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Consolidated Financial Results of the Company to express an 
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Results.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Results that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Results 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidat-
ed Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the financial statements.
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Other Matters

The Statement includes the results for the Quarter ended March 31, 2022 being the balancing figure between audited 
figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current 
financial year which were subject to limited review. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For NAVIN NISHAR & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REGN. NO-116503W

    
    
 

Sd/-
CA. NAVIN K. NISHAR

PROPRIETOR
M. No. 101443

UDIN: 22101443AKDQOH3384

Place : Mumbai
Date: 02nd June, 2022
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